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Independent auditors report

To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the related
statement of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for
Certified Public Accountants ("*SOCPA") (collectively referred to as "IFRS as endorsed in KSA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Public



m} KPMG Al Fozan & Partners

Certified Public Accountants

Indepenaent auditors report

{brahim Abmed Al-Bassam & Co
ot Ted P Actwetiety - A3t B Ok
{rnembar been of BRF interagtinal)

PK

To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company (continued)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of ultimate claim liability arising from

As at 31 December 2019, the gross outstanding
claims including claims Incurred but Not Reported
(IBNR) amounted to SR 1,092.5 million as reported
in Note 8 of the financial statements.

The valuation of ultimate reinsurance contract
liabilities is the key judgmental area for
management given the level of subjectivity inherent
in estimating the impact of claim events that have
occurred for which the ultimate outcome remains
uncertain.

The Company uses a range of actuarial
methodologies to estimate these claims. This
requires significant judgments relating to factors
and assumptions such as inflation, claims
development pattern and regulatory requirements.

Due to significance of amount involved and the
exercise of significant judgment by management in
the process for determination of ultimate
reinsurance contract liabilities, we have determined
it to be a key audit matter.

Refer to note 4 which disclosed the estimated
liability arising from claims under reinsurance
contracts and note 3 which discloses accounting
policies for claims.

We assessed the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of key controls
over management’'s processes for claims
processing and payment, including controls over
the completeness and accuracy of the claim
estimates recorded.

On a sample basis, we tested the measurement
of claims reserves on a case-by-case basis by
comparing the outstanding claims to source
documentation.

We engaged our actuarial specialist to assess the
methodologies and assumptions used by the
management in determining the reserves for
incurred but not reported claims. We have also
reviewed the actuarial reserve report issued by the
independent actuary.

We evaluated the completeness and accuracy of
data used by management in their calculation of
ultimate reinsurance contract liabilities and
evaluated the results of liability adequacy test.
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Independent auditors report

To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of managements’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company (the “Company”).

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For KPMG Al Fozan & Partners
Certified Public Accountants For Al-Bassam & Co.
P. 0. Box 92876 )
Riyadh 11663

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Hani Hamzah A. Bedairi
Certified Public Accountant
License No. 460
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits

Accrued special commission income from time deposits
Premium receivables, nat

Investments held at fair value through income statement
Held-to-maturity investments

Accrued reinsurance premioms

Retroceded share of unearned premiums

Dieferred excess of loss premivms

Retroceded share of oulstanding claims

Retroceded share of claims incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other assets

Property and equipment, net

Acerued special commission income from bonds and sukuk
nvestment in an equity accounted investze

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable

Retrocession balances payable

Accrued retroceded premiums

Lingarned premiums

Outstanding elaims

Claims incurred but not reported

Uneamed retrocession commission

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees” end of service benefits

Provision for zakat and tax

Accrued commission income payable o SAMA

TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING REINSURANCE OPERATIONS'

SURPLUS

REINSURANCE OPERATIONS' SURPLLUS

Accumulated sumplus
TOTAL REINSURANCE OPERATIONS' SURPLUS

TOTAL LIABILITIES INCLUDING REINSURANCE OPERATIONS'

SURPLLUS

EQUITY

Share capital
Statutory reserve
Retained earnings
Other reserves
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES INCLUDING REINSURANCE OPERATIONS'

SURPLUS AND EQUITY

-

-~

MWC icf/Executive Officer

Chairman of the Board

2019 2018

Notes SR SR
5 13,169,059 31,886,106
Tk 378,031,179 270,131,677
7,974,404 2,079,624

6 233,392,376 200,023,513
7 417,847 821 552.574.107
17 37.500,000 -
14 467,070,866 409.778,137
I 50,836,786 33,080,894
11,743,563 11431609

& 282,718,771 198,432,518
& 34,812,075 59.937,179
i1 106,279,101 99,895,591
9 244,639,898 208,959,232
12 33,575,528 32.588.898
2,793,154 2,663,892

16 101,445,631 97,293,816
28 121,500,000 121.500,000
28 17,992,463 15.549.401
2,563322.675 2347806194
39,928,645 19,927,639

46,173,239 22,898,559

21,741,812 15,839,717

Y 401,997,592 380,171,285
& 737,229,272 G62.467 372
8 355,154,946 330L480.733
I5 8,396,072 6.410.240
i9 19,420,788 12,546,932
18 8,828,705 6,593,973
21 23,741,062 38.244.253
28 17,992,463 15,545,401
1,680,705,59%6 1L,311,130,126

7,546,140 4,028,195

7.546,140 4,028,195

1.688,251,736 1515158321

22 810,000,000 210,000,000
23 17,904,115 8,815,260
49,115,416 12,757,997

(1,946,592} 1.074.616
875,070,939 832,647,873
2,563,322,675  2.347.806,194

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes | to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

REVENLUES

Gross written premiums
Retroceded premiums

Excess of loss expenses

Net written preminms

Change in net unearned premivms

Net earned premiums
Retrocession commissions

TOTAL REVENUES

8] TING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Giross claims paid

Retroceded share of claims paid

Net claims paid

Change in outstanding claims, net

Changes in incurred but not reported claims, net
MNet claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs and profit commissions
Other underwriting expenses

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING INCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES)

Special commission income from time deposits

Realized gains on investments held at fair value through income statement
Unreslized gains on investments held at fair value through income statement
Special commission income from bonds and sukuk

Dividend income

Share of profit of equity accounted investec

[nvestment management expenses

Met investment income

Other income

Reversal of doubtful debts

(Gieneral and administrative expenses

Board of directors’ remunerations, meetings fees and expenses

Foreign exchange translation losses

Total income for the vear before zakat and tax
Total income attributed to the reinsurance operations

Net income for the year before zakat and tax
Zakat and tax charge for the year

Net income for the year after zakat and tax attributable
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year

the shareholders

s o
/

Chairman of the Board

2018

Notes 2019 {Restated)
SR SR

792 847561 721,604,828
(127,843,625)  (72.996.501)
(18,398,659 (31.712,226)

1o 646,605,277 616,896,101
I (4,070,415) {3.280.686)
i 642,534,862 613,615,415
13 18,175,998 16,468,058
660,710,860 630,083,473
(436,701,322)  (389.327.810)
60,006,499 24,638,382
(376,694,823)  (364.689,428)
9,524,357  (77.969,866)
(49.899.318) 38,604,930
(417,069,784)  (404.054,355)

I 72,780,534y  (172471,757)
(3.616,464) (1.997.613)
__(593,466,782)  (574.523.725)
67,244,078 51,559,748
18,325,400 5,824,455

7fiii) 13,903,154 677,598
7fiip) 3,792,706 3,460,417
4,156,498 2873709

1,862,222 3,419,095

16 5,114,506 2,303,238
{1,675,117) (3,920,439
45,479,369 14,638,073

999,616 904,831

fi 517,929 1.574.768
24 (51,030458)  (47.572.123)
25 (2,256,420) (2,180,757)
1,881,530 (3.831.844)
62,835,644 15,092,716

iz {3,517,945) {1,371,035)
32 59,317,699 13,721,681
(13.873,425)  {12.902,802)
45444274 18,879

r? .56 0.01

Uo7

Chief Financial Officer

A
W ij:hiefExecu:iua Officer
accompanying notes | to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements,
- L =
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2018
Nore Iﬂ‘sl; (Restated)
SR
Net income for the vear after zakat and tax attributable to
shareholder 45,444,274 818,879
Cther comprehensive
frems that will not be reclassified to income statement subsequently
Re-measurement of employee’ end of service benefit obligations actuarial 18
loss
-Related 1o Reinsurance Operations (2,058,517) -
-Related to Shareholders' Operations = =,
Items that may be classified to income statement subsequently
Share of foreign currency translation reserve of an equity accounted 16
investes (962,691) 3,036,196
Total comprehensive income for the year 42,423,066 3,855,075

Managing Dirglcfor- Cht?xenutiva Officer Chairman of the Board Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes [ to 35 form an intearal part of these financial statements,
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Naores SR SR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total income for the vear before zakat and tax 62,835,644 15,092,716
Adfusements to reconcile total Income for the vear before zaket and tax o net
cash used in operating activities:
Employees® end of service benefits 8 1,184,418 1.567.038
Depreciation of property and equipment 24 1,729,724 2,161,757
Realized gains on investments held at fair value through income statement Fridi) {13,903,154) (677.598)
Unrealized gains on investments held at fair value through income statement Tiiiil {3,792,706) {3.460.417)
Share of profit of equity accounted investes 16 (5,114,506) (2.303,238)
Reversal of doubtful debts [ (517,929) {1,574.768)
Operating income before changes in operating assets and liabilities 42,421,491 10,805,490
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums receivable, gross (32,850,934) 160422319
Accrued reinsurance premiums (57,292,729) (37,690.443)
Retroceded share of unearned premiums (17,755,892) 84,398,204
Unearned premivems 21,826,307 (81,317.607)
Retroceded share of outstanding claims (84,286,253) (138,343.510)
Retroceded share of claims incurred but not reported 25,125,104 46,013,296
Deferred acquisition costs (6,383,510 449 553
Deferred excess of loss premiums (311,954) 2,868,169
Prepaid expenses, deposits and other assets (35,680,666) (104,766,721)
Accounts pavable 20,001,006 3,279 446
Retrocession balances payable 23,274,680 (206,865,263)
Accrued retroceded premiums 5,902,095 7.948.442
Qutstanding claims 74,761,900 216,513,371
Claims incurred but not reported 24,774,213 (84,618,233)
Unearned commission income 1,985,832 {1,132.059)
Accrued expenses and other liabilites 6,873,836 {2635,591)
12,384,526 (122.301,049)
Zakat and tax paid 21 (28,375,616) (12,089.919)
Emplovees™ end of service benefits paid I8 (1,008.205) (702.340)
Net cash used in operating activities (16,999,295) {135,093,308)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits (122,984.057) (162.379.122)
Accrued special commission income on time deposits (5,894, 780) (1,207.646)
Accruad special commission income from bonds and sukuk (129,262) 1,167,091
Purchase of property and equipment. net {2,716,354) (1,214.686)
Additions in investments held at fair value through income statement T (354,245,449 {37.078.728)
Proceeds from disposal of investments held at fair value through income
statement F{HE) 506,667,595 373,710,165
Statutory deposit - (20,300,000
Held-to-maturity investments (37,500,000 -
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (16,802,307} 131,497,074
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (33,801,602) {3,596,234)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 81,635,536 85,231,770
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END O 5 47,833,934 #1.635.536

Chairman of the Board

Managi j { Chiefl’ Executive Officer
The accompanying notes | 10 35 form an integral pant of these financial statements.

ﬁ@u%ﬁ —7

Chief Financial Officer
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Reinsurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
under commercial registration number 1010250125 dated 12 Jumad Al-Awal le#®ésonding to 17 May 2008) with a
branch in the Federal Territory of Labuan, Malaysia with licenséeui$2014146The address of the Company’s registered
office is at 4130 Northern Ring Road Al Wadi, Unit number ¥aBh 13313-6684, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The objective of the Company is to transact cooperatimsurance and related activities inside and outsidg€itigglom
of Saudi Arabia.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018dwverepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting StandardiFRS” as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards andnmenents issued by
Saudi Organizion of Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA’) (collectively referred to as “IFRS as endorsed in KSA”).

The annual financial statement for the year ended 31 December 201®repared in compliance with IFRS as modified by
Saudi Arabian Monetary Agen¢$AMA) SAMA for the ‘accounting of zakat and income tax’, which requires, adoption of all
IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) exciiya &pplication of International Accounting
Standard (relating to the application of IAS-12Income Taxes” and IFRIC 21 — “Levies” so far as these relate to zakat and
income tax and the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

On 23 July 2019, SAMA instructed the insurance companies in the Kingdom off8abidi to account for the zakat and taxes

in the statement of income. This aligns with the IFRS and égpirgtations as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi
Organization of Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”) (collectively referred to as “IFRS”) as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi

Arabia.

Accordingly, the Company changed its accounting treatment for zaldheome tax by retrospectively adjusting the impact
in line with International Accounting Standard 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” (as
disclosed in note 3) and the effects of this change are disclosed in note 2hdialfistatements.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-current classification. However, the
following balances would generally be classified as currds@gnk balances and cashme deposits, accrued special
commission income from time deposifremium receivabk net, investments held at fair value through income
statementdeferred excess of loss premiums, retroceded share of olitgtataims, prepaid expenses, deposits and other
assets, accrued special commission income from bondsukut, accounts payable, retrocession balances payable,
outstanding claims, accrued expenses and other liabiptiegision for zakat and income tax and accumulated surplus
The following balances would generally be classified aseurent: accruettinsurance premiums, retroceded share of
unearned premiums, retroceded share of claims incurretbbrgported, deferred policy acquisition costs, proferty
equipment, netinvestment in an equity accounted investee, statutory depasitiied income on statutory deppsit
accrued retroceded premiums, unearned premiums, claims thowitraot reported, unearned retrocession commission,
employees red of service benefits and accrued commission income pat@aBAMA.

The Company presents its statement of financial paositioorder of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arabian
Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate book&cofints for Reinsurance Operations and
Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial statements accordingly (refer to N&2¢ Assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses clearly attributable to eitherntaaire recorded in the respective accounts. The lmsis
allocation of expenses from joint operations is deteechiand approved by the management and the Board of Directors

The statement of financial position, statements obrime, comprehensive income and cash flows of the in®iranc
operations and shareholdeoperations which are presented in Note 32 of the finbstziements have been provided
as supplementary financial information to comply with teguirements of the guidelines issued by SAMA
implementing regulations and is not required under IFFRESMA implementing regulations requires the clear
segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and esqsenf theeinsurance operations and the shareholders operations.
Accordingly, the statements of financial position,etants of income, comprehensive income and cash fiepsred

for thereinsurance operations and shareholdergerations as referred to above, reflect only thetgskabilities,
income, expenses and comprehensive gains or lossesre§fieetive operations.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
@) Basis of presentation (continued)

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in camg with IFRS, the balances and transactions of the
reinsurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the shareholders’ operations. Inter-operation
balances, transactions and unrealised gains or lokaay, are eliminated in full during amalgamation. The anting
policies adopted for thesinsurance operations and shareholdepgrations are uniform for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances.

The inclusion of separate information of the reinsceapperations with the financial information of then@any in
the statement of financial position, statement of inrgostatement of comprehensive income, cash flowsetisas
certain relevant notes to the financial informatiepresents additional supplementary information requireeogsred
by the implementing regulations.

Surplus is distributed between reinsurance operationstareéholders operations in accordance with the implengenti
regulations issued by the SAMA, whereby the shareholdettseo€ompany are to receive 90% of the annual surplus
from reinsurance operations and the policyholders areceive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on reiasae
operations is transferred to the shareholders' operatfafi.in

As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Commpaintains separate accounts for Reinsurance and
Shareholders’ operations and presents the financial statements accordingly. Revenues and expenses clearly attributable

to either activity is recorded in the respective act@urhe basis of allocation of other revenue and expdna®m joint
operations is determined by the management and Boaridexft@rs.

In accordance with the Article 70 (2g) of the Insurance Impiging Regulations of SAMA, a minimum of 20% of the
annual net income is required to be transferred to a@tateserve until this reserve equals the paid-up cagithleo
Company. This reserve is not available for distribution.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on $haribal cost basis, except for the measurement ravdiaie of
investments held at fair value through income stateraedtInvestment in an equity accounted investee which is
accounted for under the equity method and End of SeBgoefits (EOSB) at present value.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Salian Riyals (SR), which is also the functional cuckeof
the Company.

(d) Fiscal year
The Compan} fiscal year is aligned with the calendar year i.begins at 1 January and ends at 31 December.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies used in the preparation of thesadial statements are consistent with those used in the
preparation of the annual financial statements for ¢a¢ gnded 31 December 2018 except for the following:

A) Change in accounting for Zakat and income tax

The basis of preparation has been changed as a resudt isEance of latest instructions from SAMA dated 28 Jul
2019. Previously, zakat and income tax were recognized stdtement of changes in equity as per the SAMA circular
no 381000074519 dated 11 April 2017. With the instructions issuSABA dated 23 July 2019, where by the zakat
and income tax shall be recognized in the statemeimtcofne. The Company has accounted for this change in the
accounting for zakat and income tax retrospectivelyris¢ée 2) and the effects of the above change are disdosiote

20 to financial statements. The change has resulted inti@do€ reported income of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 by SR 12,902,802. The change has had no impacstatdiment of cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CO NTINUED)
(A) Change in accounting for Zakat and income taxXcontinued)

i) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is dkeptiyable on the current y&ataxable income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjustedhlanges in deferred tax assets and liabilities attrilitab
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basie tdix laws enacted or substantively enacted at theféhe
reporting period in the countries where the company ansulisidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions takexireturns with respect to situations in which applecab

tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It esidias provisions, where appropriate, on the basasnofunts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.

Adjustments arising from the final income tax assessnaeatecorded in the period in which such assessments dee ma

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions vathrasident parties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as
required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. Withholding taaés on behalf of non-resident parties, which are not
recoverable from such parties, are expensed.

i) IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income tax treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for incames twhen tax treatments involve uncertainty that tafféne
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to takdsvies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interestl genalties associated with uncertain tax treatmerits. T
Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatnsaptarately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examinatia® teatments by taxation authorities

* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tasebaunused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
* How an entity considers changes in facts and circunesanc

An entity has to determine whether to consider each wiicdaix treatment separately or together with one oe rotbrer
uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better préuéctesolution of the uncertainty needs to be followed.

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying ttaggies over income tax treatments. Since the Company
operates in a complex multinational environment, it asdesbether the Interpretation had an impact on its financia
statements.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Company a®rsid whether it has any uncertain tax positions, particularly
those relating to transfer pricing. The Company’s tax filings in different jurisdictions include deductions related to transfer
pricing and the taxation authorities may challenge thagereatments. The Company determined, based on its tax
compliance and transfer pricing study that it is probtiaeits tax treatments will be accepted by the taxatidhorities.

The Interpretation did not have an impact on the finaistééments of the Company.

iii) Zakat
The Company is subject to Zakat in accordance witheagelations of the General Authority of Zakat and Incorag T
(“GAZT”). Zakat expense is charged to the profit or loss. Zakat is not accounted for as income tax and as such no diferre
tax is calculated relating to zakat.
B) Adoption of IFRS 16— Leases

Effective 1 January 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16, Leasekeaimdpict of this adoption of this standard is
explained below:

The standard replaces the existing guidance on leases including IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a lease”, SIC 15 “Operating Leases — Incentives” and SIC 27 “Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions in the Legal forof a lease”.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B) Adoption of IFRS 16— Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and is effective for annuadipeommencing on or after 1 January 2019. On 1st
January 2019 i.e. the etféve date, IFRS 16 had no significant financial impact on the Company’s financial statements.
IFRS 16 stipulates that all lease and the associatedactul rights and obligations should generally be rezegnn
the Company’s statement of financial position, unless the term is 12 months or less or the lisafer low value assets.

Thus, the classification required under IAS 17 “Leases” into operating or finance leases is eliminated for lessees. For each
lease, the lessee recognizes a liability for theeleddigation incurred in the future. Correspondingly, atrighuse the
leased asset is capitalized, which is generally equividetite present value of the future lease paymentsdpiectly
attributable costs, which is amortized over the usétil |

The Company has opted for the modified retrospective appaggattation method that this is permitted by IFRS 16.
As a result, of the initial application of IFRS 16 to opieigileases, the right to use the leased assets wiasatjg
measured at the amount of lease liability, usingriieeemental borrowing rate that is the best estimateeo€Company
at the time of initial application (i.e.1 April 2019), whiwas approximately 5%. The right of use asset is cladsifider
property and equipment. On the other hand, the leasetjiasbitlassified under accrued expenses and other liadilitie

i) Rightof use (RoU) Assets / Lease Liabilities

On initial recognition, at inception of the contrace thompany shall assess whether the contract is, aricera lease.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contrantegs the right to control the use of an identified tafssea period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is identified dstnof the benefits are flowing to the Company and the
Company can direct the usage of such assets

e Right of Use Assets

The Company applies the cost model, and measuregttiefiuse assets at cost:

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulatedrimeptlosses; and

b) Adjusted for anye-measurement of the lease liability for lease madalifns.

Generally, a RoU asset would be equal to lease lialiibyvever, if there are additional costs such as siteapation,
non-refundable deposits, application money, other expeelséed to the transactions, etc, these need to be amlthes t
RoU asset value.

e Lease Liability

On initial recognition, the lease liability is the pgasvalue of all remaining payments to the lessor. Alfter
commencement date, the Company measures the |daifity liay:

a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect incremdimancing rate on the lease liability;

b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the leagmpats made; and

¢) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any resaissmt or lease modification.

Right of use assets are classified under property and equipwigte lease liabilities are classified under accrued
expenses and other liabilities in the statement afiftral position.

C) Standards issued but not yet effective

In addition to the above-mentioned standards, the folipwitandards and interpretations that are issued, but hot ye
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to
adopt these standards, if applicable, when they becffentiee. Further, the Company has chosen not to ealdpt the
amendments and revisions to the International Financipbrfleg Standards which have been published and are
mandatory for compliance for the Company with effect dafature dates.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )
C) Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

This standard was published on July 24, 2014 and has replac@&®1A8e new standard addresses the following items
related to financial instruments:

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a fshasset is measured at amortized cost, fair valuaghro
other comprehensive income or fair value through poofibss. A financial asset is measured at amortipstitboth:

i) the asset is held within a business model whose olgeistito hold assets in order to collect contractual dagls f
and;

ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give oisespecified dates to cash flows that are solely paymadnts
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”).

The financial asset is measured at fair value througer @omprehensive income and realized gains or losagsl Wwe
recycled through profit or loss upon sale, if both condg#iare met:

i) the asset is held within a business model whosetlgids to hold assets in order to collect contractusih dews
and for sale and,;
i) the contractual terms of cash flows are SPPI

Assets not meeting either of these categories assumed at fair value through profit or loss. Additionadiy,initial
recognition, an entity can use the option to designaieaadial asset at fair value through profit or loss ifndoso
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting misima

For equity instruments that are not held for trading, dityezen also make an irrevocable election to preseathiar
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair athe mstruments (including realized gains and losses),
dividends being recognized in profit or loss.

Additionally, for financial liabilities that are desiged as at fair value through profit or loss, the amounhafige in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributablo changes in the credit risk of that liability is redegd in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatgiofit or loss.

Impairment

The impairment model under IFRS 9 reflects expected crexdit$p as opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39.
Under the IFRS 9 approach, itis no longer necessarycfadit event to have occurred before credit losses emgmized.
Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credéda@ssd changes in those expected credit losses. The arhount o
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting dafketd changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for hedge accounting ligat lledge accounting more closely with Risk
Management. The requirements establish a more prindpkesd approach to the general hedge accounting model. The
amendments apply to all hedge accounting with the excegdtprtfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk (comiyo
referred to as “fair value macro hedges”). For these, an entity may continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements
currently in IAS 39. This exception was granted largely becthes¢ASB is addressing macro hedge accounting as a
separate project.

Effective date

The published effective date of IFRS 9 was January 1, 2&dB8ever, amendments to IFRS-4nsurance Contracts:
Applying IFRS 9- Financial Instruments with IFRS-4Insurance Contracts, published on September 12, 2016, changes
the existing IFRS 4 to allow entities issuing insuracmeatracts within the scope of IFRS 4 to mitigate ceméfiects of
applhying TFRS 9 before the IASB’s new insurance contract standard (IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts) becomes effective.
The amendments introduce two alternative options:
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )
C) Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Effective date (continued)
1) apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 urgildrlier of

a) the effective date of a new insurance contract standar

b) annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 20217 ®iarch 2020, the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) has decided to further extend the effective date of IFRS 17 and the FFR&porary
exemption in IFRS 4 to January 1, 2023. Additional disclosutatedeto financial assets are required during
the deferral period. This option is only available totergiwhose activities are predominately connected with
insurance and have not applied IFRS 9 previously; or;

2) adopt IFRS 9 but, for designated financial assets, remorregrofit or loss the effects of some of the accogntin
mismatches that may occur before the new insurandeacbstandard is implemented. During the interim period,
additional disclosures are required.

The Company has performed a preliminary assessment incickded below:

(1) The carrying amount of the Company’s liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 (including
deposit components or embedded derivatives unbundled from rinsucantracts) were compared to the total
carrying amount of all its liabilities; and

(2) The total carrying amount of thefdpany’s liabilities connected with insurance were compared to the total carrying
amount of all its liabilities. Based on these assesssithe Company determined that it is eligible forténgporary
exemption. Consequently, the Company has decided to deferglementation of IFRS 9 until the effective date
of the new insurance contracts standard. Disclosuresdetafinancial assets required during the deferral peregod ar
included in the Company’s financial statements.

Impact assessment

The Company is currently assessing the impact of thécapiph and implementation of IFRS 9. As of the datehef t
publication of these financial statements, the findriigipact of adopting the standard has yet to be fullysasseby the
Company.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company has total financiatsaasd insurance related assets amounting to SR
1,573,480,519 and SR 486,390,296 respectively. However, the Congpgat/ to perform a detailed assessment to
determine whether the debt securities meet the SPRigesjuired by IFRS 9. Credit risk exposure, concentration of
credit risk and credit quality of these financial assegsn@entioned in note 30. The Company is currently asgetsn
impact on application and implementation of IFRS 9, howtheCompany expects the classification and measurement
of financial assets to be impacted from implementatfdfrRS 9 as company is yet to perform a detailed review.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Overview

This standard has been published on May 18, 2017, it estzblish principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and esdegil&RS 4 Insurance contracts.

The new standard applies to insurance contracts issuedl, reinsurance contracts and to investment caistraith

discretionary participating features provided the entigp assues insurance contracts. It requires to sepdrate t
following components from insurance contracts:

15



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )
C) Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

i) embedded derivatives, if they meet certain specifiedraijt
i) distinct investment components; and
iii) any promise to transfer distinct goods or non-insuraapéces.

These components should be accounted for separatelydrdance with the related standards (IFRS 9 and IFRS 15).
Measurement

In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which permittad-éns to continue to use the accounting policies for
measurement purposes that existed prior to January 2015 1IFRrovides the following different measurement
models:

The General Measurement Model (GMM) is based on thewolly “building blocks”:

b) the fulfilment cash flows (FCF), which comprise:
o probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
e an adjustment to reflect the time value of money (iseadinting) and the financial risks associated with those
future cash flows,
e and arisk adjustment for non-financial risk;

c) the Contractual Service Margin (CSM). The CSM representsrtbarned profit for a group of insurance contracts
and will be recognized as the entity provides seniitdBe future. The CSM cannot be negative at inception; a
net negative amount of the fulfilment cash flows aepimn will be recorded in profit or loss immediately.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period the carryingrdrofoa group of insurance contracts is remeasured
to be the sum of:
e the liability for remaining coverage, which compriske FCF related to future services and the CSM of the
group at that date; and
o the liability for incurred claims, which is measuredtzs FCF related to past services allocated to the grbup
that date.
The CSM is adjusted subsequently for changes in cash flowsd étafuture services but the CSM cannot be negative,
so changes in future cash flows that are greater thaeraning CSM are recognized in profit or loss.

The effect of changes in discount rates will be reponteitiher profit or loss or other comprehensive incomeraened
by an accounting policy choice.

The Variable Fee Approach (VFA) is a mandatory model for orgsscontracts with direct participation features (also
referred to as ‘direct participating contracts’). This assessment of whether the contract meets these criteria is made at
inception of the contract and not reassessed subsequeartiiese contracts, in addition to adjustment under GMM, th
CSM is also adjusted for:

i) the entity’s share of the changes in the fair value of underlying items;
0] the effect of changes in the time value of money affidamcial risks not relating to the underlying items.

In addition, a simplified Premium Allocation Approach (PAA)permitted for the measurement of the liability for
remaining coverage if it provides a measurement thadtisnaterially different from the General Measurenidntiel
for the group of contracts or if the coverage period &mhecontract in the group is one year or less. With &¥&, Ehe
liability for remaining coverage corresponds to premiunssived at initial recognition less insurance acquisitishca
flows. The General Measurement Model remains applidabléhe measurement of the liability for incurredirtis.
However, the entity is not required to adjust future choshsffor the time value of money and the effect offficial risk

if those cash flows are expected to be paid/receivedéryear or less from the date the claims are indurre

Effective date
The IASB issued an Exposure Draft Amendments to IFRS 17 prmpositain amendments to IFRS 17 during June
2019 and received comments from various stakeholders. OnaléhN020, the International Accounting Standards

Board (“TASB”) has completed its discussions on the amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts that were proposed for
public consultation in June 2019. It has decided that thetigffetate of the Standard will be deferred to annedrting
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

C) Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Effective date (continued)

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The IASB exjeistsue the amendments to IFRS 17 in the second quarter
of 2020. . Earlier application is permitted if both IFRS-1Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9
Financial Instruments have also been applied. The Qoyripdéends to apply the Standard on its effective dateli.e.

January 2023.

Transition

Retrospective application is required. However, if fultagpective application for a group of insurance contricts

impracticable, then the entity is required to chooeeeia modified retrospective approach or a fair value approa

Presentation and Disclosures

The Company expects that the new standard will resaltthange to the accounting policies for insurance césitad
reinsurance and investment contracts with discretigparycipating features, if applicable together with admeents to

presentation and disclosures.

Impact assessment:

The Company is currently assessing the impact ofgpécation and implementation of IFRS 17. As of the datinef
publication of these financial statements, the findricipact of adopting the standard has yet to be fullysssskby the
Company. The Company has undertaken a Gap Analysis aketlyaps and their impact are as follows:

Impact Area

Summary of Impact

Financial Impact

The Company is currently assessing the impact of tpplication and
implementation of IFRS 17. As of the date of the publicatf these financia
statements, the financial impact of adopting the stahuts yet to be fully assess
by the Company

Data Impact

IFRS 17 has additional data requirements and Company hasitynajb data
available and currently is in the process of building datieelouse to accommoda
any extra data requirements and consolidate the dateeiplace coming from it
various IT systems.

IT Systems Impact

The Company is currently in a process of enhancingdipability of its current
systems. Also, the Company is currently in procesevaiuating the IFRS 1
calculation engines available in the market that Geitnpany requirements und
IFRS 17.

Process Impact

IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the presentation ofstatgement of financia
position and statement of income and will result in m@tehanges in policies an
procedures, product assessment, actuarial valuation andsdisslaequirement
Hence, the company is currently carrying out assessitwerdlign all these
requirements under IFRS 17 by employing IFRS 17 calculation eregihancemen
of its actuarial, accounting and investment systems;hwhvill fulfil the disclosure
requirements as wel

Impact on RI Arrangements

The exposure of these covers go beyond 12 months andgaredabith its inward
reinsurance business the company writes. The Compatyriently assessing i
recognition eligibility of its reinsurance contractdche

Impact on Policies & Control
Frameworks

The Company is currently assessing the impact of thplication and
implementation of IFRS 17. As of the date of the publicaidf these financia
statements, the financial impact of adopting the stahulas yet to be fully assess
by the Company, therefore the company is in the pramesshancing its policie
and procedures and control framework to align them wiRSIE7 application an
implementation

The Company has started its implementation process andehaip a project team, supervised by an IFRS executive

management committee.

17



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

D) The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparatn of these financial statements are set out below:

Retrocession

The Company uses retrocession agreements to redugpadtsiee to risks assumed to increase its aggregate undggwriti
capacity. The ceding of risk to retrocessionaires datselieve the Company from its direct obligatidosts ceding
companies. An impairment review of amounts recoverable undecession agreements is performed at each reporting
date or more frequently when an indication of impairmeisearduring the reporting year. Impairment occurs when
objective evidence exists that the Company may not reautstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and
when the impact on the amounts that the Company waivedrom the retrocessionaire camrbeasured reliably. The
impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross babistfoassumed reinsurance and retroceded business.

Retrocession liabilities represent balances due to retrocessgn@nounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with
the associated retrocession contract. Retroceded assetmlaliies are derecognized when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Investment in an equity accounted investee

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influencet, crtna or joint control, over the financial
and operating policies. Interests in associates are accoontesirig the equity method. They are initially recognised dt cos
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements inthedghare of the profit or loss and Other comprehensive income
of associates, until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, castkatdal time deposits with an original maturity of less
than three months from the date of acquisition.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to recpasgment is established, which is generally when shitetso
approve the dividend.

Deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC)

Direct costs incurred during the financial period arisiogifthe writing or renewing of reinsurance contractsleferred

to the extent that these costs are recoverable outurkfpremiums. Subsequent to initial recognition, defetosts are
amortized using the same basis as for unearned premiunostiZation is recorded in the statement of inconfaar@es

in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumgitioiture economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortization period antteaited as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting dateare frequently when an indication of impairment arises.
When the recoverable amounts are less than the carrglng,\an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income. DAC is also considered in the liability adequasy for each reporting period.

Deferred policy acquisition costs are derecognised wherldited contracts are either settled or disposed off.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred bathalpaid in cash. Prepayments are initially recorded &sass
and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequensly,aieecharged to statement of income as they arameds
or expire with the passage of time.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulepedciation and any impairment in value. When significant
parts of property and equipment are required to be replagegrvals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates theandingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are résedn

in statement of income as incurred. Land and capitdtawmeprogress are not depreciated.

The cost of all other property and equipment is deprecatéte straight-line method over the estimated usefes of
the assets as follows:

18



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

Property and equipment (Continued)

Building 33 Years
Computers and equipment 3-5 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years
Motor vehicles 4 Years
Leasehold improvements 10 Years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each negaoldte. The carrying
values of these assets are reviewed for impairment edmms or changes in circumstances indicate that the a@arryin
value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exigtsvhere the carrying values exceed the estimated rebtevera
amount, the assets are written down to their recoveaahbunt.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposahen no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arigingevecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying awioing asset) is included in the statement of incomakant

into income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of finansitibpalate to determine whether there is objective ade¢hat

a specific financial asset or a group of financial @ssey be impairedmpairment occurs when objective evidence
exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amaouthes the terms of the contract and when the impacteon th
amounts that the Company will receive can be measwal@bly. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of income. Impairment is m@ted as follows:

. For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the diffeg between cost and fair value, less any impairtogst
previously recognized in the statement of income;

. For assets carried at cost, impairment is the differbetwveen carrying value and the present value of fuaste ¢
flows discounted at the current market rate of return fmdlar financial asset; and

. For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is ffeeatice between carrying amount and the present value
of future cash flows discounted at the original effective speoralmission rate.

Gross written premiums

Gross written premiums comprise of total premiumsiiticn to contracts incepting during the financial yesasipective
of whether they relate in whole or in part to a latepanting period. It includes an estimate of pipeline premileisg
those premiums written but not reported to the Compatheastatement of financial position date. Pipeline puemsi
are reported as accrusghsurance premiums in the statement of financial jposit

Where contract terms require the reinstatement of coverage after a ceding company’s loss, the mandatory reinstatement
premiums are calculated in accordance with the contanst

Premiums earned and commission income

Premiums and commission income are earned over thelpeéoiavhich they relate to cover ttesurance risk. Unearned
premiums and commission income represent the portiomeofipms written and commission income relating to the
unexpired period of coverage and are deferred based on theigimethods:

e Actual number of days for facultative reinsurance and-mprmportional reinsurance treaties and portfolio
transferred from insurance companies.

e For proportional reinsurance treaties under consideratiche underlying exposure in relation to the line of
business as follows:

Line of business Years

Engineering 4

Others 2

Special contracts Based on underlying terms and natt

19



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

Premiums earned and commission income (continued)
The change in the provision for unearned premiums amanéssion income is taken to the statement of incomediero
to recognize revenue over the period to coverdimsurance risks.

Claims
Claims, comprise of amounts of claims estimatediadtby ceding companies under reinsurance contractsetated
loss adjustment expenses, net of recoveries and are dhiargfatement of income.

These include the cost of claims and claims handling expeasgsiuring the period, together with the movements in
provisions for outstanding claims, claims incurred kaitreported (IBNR) and claims handling provisions. Thenate
liability may be in excess of or less than the amountigeal.

Any difference between the provisions at the reportiate and settlements and provisions in the followiegryis
included in the statement of income for that year. Theg2my does not discount its liabilities for unpaid clairms a
substantially most claims are expected to be paid withényear of the financial reporting date.

The Company estimates its claims provisions basedesiops experience. Independent loss adjusters normally &stima
property claims. In addition, a provision based on management’s judgement and the Company’s prior experience, is
maintained for Incurred But Not Reported (‘IBNR”) claims as well as for the cost of settling pending claims at the
statement of financial position date. The IBNR amosriiased on estimates calculated using widely accepted attuari
techniques such as Chain Ladder, Bornhuetter Ferguson Method sunattiles which are reviewed at regular intervals
by the @mpany’s independent actuary. The techniques generally use projectiassgd on past experience of the
development of claims over time, to form a view onlikely ultimate claims to be experienced. Regard is gteghe
variations in the business portfolio accepted and therlyimtlpterms and conditions. Thus, the critical aggtioms used
when estimating provisions are that past experiencesigsanable predictor of likely future claims developmentiaaid

the rating and business portfolio assumptions are aefigction of the likely level of ultimate claims to leurred for

the more recent years.

The outstanding claims are shown on gross basis aneéldited share of retroceded is shown separately.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, a lighadequacy test is performed to ensure the adequadyeof t
reinsurance contracts liabilities net of related defeaequisition costs. In performing these tests, Manageuosarst
current best estimates of future contractual cash fladsciaims handling and administration expenses. Any defigien
in the carrying amounts is immediately charged to thersent of income initially by writing off related defed
acquisition costs and subsequently, by establishing a o losses arising from liability adequacy tests.

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable are recognized when due and are ntkasurimitial recognition at the fair value of the
considerations received or receivable. Subsequentlynieasured at amortized cost. The carrying value ofipnesn
receivable is reviewed for impairment whenever eventsroumstances indicate that the carrying amount mapeot
recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in thieistent of income. Premiums receivable are derecagjmihen
the derecognition criteria for financial assets hawnbuet.

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paithaftture for goods or services received, whether bijetie supplier
or not.

Special commission income
Special commission income is recognized on an effegield basis taking account of the principal outstandimdythe
applicable special commission rate.

Investments held at fair value through income statement

Investments held at fair value through income statemeriiegstments designated at fair value through incomenséait
at inception. For investments designated as fair value thrioegme statement, the following criteria must be met:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

Investments held at fair value through income statement (continub
e This designation eliminates or significantly reducesitivensistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets and liabilities or recognisingsgai losses on a different basis; or
e The assets and liabilities are part of a group ohfiied assets, financial liabilities or both, sucheésand liabilitis
are managed and their performance is evaluated on aafai basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair vaitdbsequent to initial recognition, these investmeamtsreeasured
at fair value.

Fair value adjustments and realised gains and losses@rgnized in the statement of income.

General and administrative expenses
All expenses incurred during the fiscal year not direciating to underwriting are classified as general and
administrative expenses.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in SayalisRat the exchange rate in effect at the date dféinsaction
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign coiee are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
statement of financial position date. All differenees taken to the respective statements of income

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has an ohtigeagal or constructive) as a result of past eventsjtasd
more likely than not that an outflow of resources wiltéguired to settle the obligation and the amount has bbablye
estimated.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are oftaet the net amount reported in the statement of fialgpasition only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offsetrstognized amounts and there is an intention te setth net basjs
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilibutianeously. Income and expense is not offset in thensésit of income
unless required or permitted by any accounting standard orrigtiatipn.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial asseteeaognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. thehddt
the Company commits to purchase or sell the assetgul& way purchases or sales are purchases or sales ofdinan
assets that require settlement of assets within theftam@e generally established by regulation or converitiaghe
market place.

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company thagaged in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses and which is subject tantskewards that are different from those of other segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consisténtheitinternal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, whoesponsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identiftbd akief executive officer that makes strategic decisions
The Company is organised into business units based orptbdircts and services and has seven reportable operating
segments as follows:

e Engineering is a comprehensive insurance cover shavailable to the insured in respect of contingencies
which may happen on a construction or erection site. It gesvan all risks cover for the works as well as a
liability cover towards third parties for material damaweinjury sustained as a result of the work being
undertaken. The cover is also available for machinery.

e Fire insurance pays for specific losses when a propedsmaged to due to fire, flood, earthquake and other
external perils. It may also provide indemnity for lospraffit in case of an industrial or commercial activity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED )

Segmental reporting (continued)

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage to cargo, tdsnand or damage of ships or other means of
transport of cargo by which property is transferred betviee points of origin and final destination.

Motor insurance pays for loss or damage to own motadcheshinvolved in accidents. It also pays for losses
caused by its use to third party properties and bodily injuries

Protection includes Term and credit life insurance. THieninsurance is used to provide financial aid for
dependents in case of death and in certain cases of itindissbility. It can be an individual or a group policy
with set duration limit on the coverage with the optiomenew the policy or not. Credit life insurance iedis
to pay off a borrower’s debt if that borrower dies, with set duration limit on coverage tighoption to renew
the policy or not.

General accident covers a variety of events/properties sudorey, liabilities and personal accident whether
for individual or group.

Speciality includes company’s participation in Lloyd’s market which specialises in writing worldwide property,
marine, energy, speciality and non-U.S. liability irsgice

Others include following business segments:

Whole accountsovers ceding company’s retention (mainly in property, engineering, marine hull, marine cargo
and sometimes include general accident and/or motor) as&xd loss basis

Aviation (covers Aviation Hull, Aviation Liabilities ahSpare Parts)

Energy (covers Property Damage, Liabilities and Business uition)

Agriculture (covers standing crops)

Political Risk (covers Political Violence and Sabotage &errorism)

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit omoieh, in certain respects, is measured differentiyfpoofit
or loss in the financial statements.

No inter-segment transactions occurred during the yeamylfransaction were to occur, transfer prices betwasindss
segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense
and results will then include those transfers betweeméss segments which will then be eliminated at thel lef
financial statements of the Company.

Deferred Excess of Loss Premiums

The company uses non-proportional excess of loss refiooeagreements on loss occurring basis to reduesatsure
arising from per risk and catastrophic losses on risksrasbsand to manage underwriting capacity. The costiedela
these agreements are amortized over the period of untieguaontracts and charged to statement of income
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, aisddisbilities and the disclosure of contingent lidieiti, at tke
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these estinaatt assumptions could result in an outcome that couldeequir
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asdietbility affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key saafrestimation uncertainty at the statement of firdnc
position date, that have a significant risk of causingaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
liabilities within the next financial year are discuselow.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under reinsuance contracts
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising fnoclaims made under reinsurance contracts is the Corspaiogt
critical accounting estimate. There are severalcgsuof uncertainty that are needed to be consideredirnmagag the
liability that the Company will ultimately pay for suclaims. The provision for claims incurred but not repdr{iBNR)
is an estimation of claims which are expected to berteppgubsequent to the statement of financial positite, dar
which the insured event has occurred prior to theoéffidancial reporting date.

The primary technique adopted by management in estimatingshefcnotified and IBNR claims, is that of using the
past claims settlement trends to predict future claiatidement trends. Claims requiring court or arbitration oessare
estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normalima&te property claims. Management reviews its pronsio
for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not repordada quarterly basis. The Risk and Underwriting Commiitee,
conjunction with the Company’s external actuaries, compares the changes in the technical reserves, to determine whether

the change is reasonable.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commission and other costs directly and indirectly rdlabethe acquisition and renewal of reinsurance conteaets
recorded as deferred acquisition cosB3AC”) and are amortized in the statement of income overetated period of
policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to futureitadaifity of these policies are not realised, the dination of
these costs could be accelerated and this may also radditenal impairment.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sefisset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordeldysaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fai waasurement is based on the presumption that tisattaon
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takescpleither:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ in the absence of a principal market, in the most adgaous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be dotedssby the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that mamicipants would use when pricing the asset or lighdissuming
that market participants act in their economic bestester

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assetstak® account a market participant's ability to genezatmomic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and bestruseselling it to another market participant that would tine asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuatibnitiues that are appropriate in the circumstance$oand
which sufficient data are available to measure faln®, maximising the use of relevant observable inputsnamichising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is maaslor disclosed in the financial statements are casagbriithin
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, basedhenlowest level input that is significant to treerfvalue
measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active marketdeiotical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest levplirthat is significant to the fair value measuremeutriectly
or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest lewgdut that is significant to the fair value measuremnisnt
unobservable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized initte€ial statements on a recurring basis, the Company dietsrm
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in thedtigray re-assessing categorization (based on the |@vest
input that is significant to the fair value measuremerd awhole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company hesrdeed classes of assets and liabilities on this bathe
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset oritiahitd the level of the fair value hierarchy as explainedeab

The Investment @nmittee, in conjunction with the Company’s external fund managersvaluates the performance of
each investment to determine whether the same isr&alson comparison to the market.

The Company’s management evaluates the changes in the fair value obhehother assets and liabilities, to determine
whether the applied methodology is reasonable.

Accrued insurance premium

Estimates have to be made for expected future premium frboiepaalready written but not reported at the reporting
date. Due to the nature of reinsurance business, it éagigsificant period of time before all premiums are regabfor

a given underwriting period. Therefore, considerable judgeragpérience and knowledge of the business is required
by management in the estimation of accrued premiums dueclatract holders. Actual results may differ resulting in
positive or negative change in estimated accrued premiumeco

The accrued premium estimates are reviewed regulatigdopnanagement by using various methods, but printayily
using historical reporting trends as a base for assessing futemium amounts. Historical premiums developments are
mainly analysed by underwriting year, by type and lineusfiness.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a gomagera basis. The Compasymanagement has made an
assessment of the Compa&nybility to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Eumtbre, the management is not aware of any materiattaintties

that may cast significant doubt upon the Compmaalyility to continue as a going concern.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Reinsurance operations

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

SR SR

Cash in hand (A) 40,000 40,000

Bank balances (A) 6,021,323 22,303,71€
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisitiore {&) 21,586,875 49,749,430
27,648,198 72,093,146

Shareholders’ operations

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
SR SR
Bank balance¢C) 7,107,736 9,542,390
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisitiore d&) 13,078,000 --
20,185,736 9,542,390
Total Bank balances and cash (A+C) 13,169,059 31,886,106
Total Deposits maturing within 3 months from acquisition date (B+D)* 34,664,875 49,749,430
Total 47,833,934 81,635,536

* Included within time deposits
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5) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Time deposits are placed with banks which have investmedé gradit ratings and have maturity period of less than
three months from the date of original placement. Agereffective interest rate for these deposits is 1.70% (2018%)

Cash at banks are placed with counterparties which hagstment grade credit ratings.

6. PREMIUMS RECEIVABLES, NET
Reinsurance operations 2019 2018
SR SR
Policyholders 235,474,03! 203,156,46.
Related parties (note 25) 1,112,04¢ 578,68¢
Less: provision for doubtful d&b (3,193,709 (3,711,638
233,392376 200,023,51:
The movement in provision for doubtful debt is as foow
2019 2018
SR SR
Opening balance 3,711,638 5,286,40¢
Reversal for the year (517,929) (1,574,768
Closing balance 3,193,709 3,711,63€
As at 31 December, the ageing of gross premiums rdxtesia as follows:
Neither past Past due but not impaired Past due
Less than 91to More than and
impaired 90days 180days 180days impaired Total
2019 SR SR SR SR SR
Policyholders, net
of payables 148,202,617 21,452,546 22,152,836 40,395,732 3,270,308 235,474,03
Related parties, n
of payables 1,067,976 (146,391) 808,147  (541,087) (76,599) 1,112,041
Total 149,270,593 21,306,155 22,960,983 39,854,645 3,193,709 236,586,08
Past due but not impaired
Neither past due Less than 91to Morethan Past due anc
nor impaired 90days 180days 180 days impaired Total
2018 SR SR SR SR SR
Policyholders, net
of payables 109,521,071 21,192,660 35,177,797 33,547,933 3,717,002 203,156,46
Related parties, n
of payables -- 12,194 (63,416) (5,364) 578,68t
Total 110,156,345 21,192,660 35,189,991 33,484,517 3,711,638 203,735,15

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsuramteacts with recognized, creditworthy third partiess ithe
Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification pdaces. In
addition, receivables are monitored @noagoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts.

The five largest customers account for 37% (31 December. 2d98) of the premium receivable as at 31 December

2019.

Premium receivables include premium deposits of SR 35,256,738:(3R 25,911,773) and claims deposits of SR
17,441,105 (2018: SR 18,234,234). These deposits are retainedchythis as per the terms of reinsurance treaties and

are of rolling nature. These deposits are released viithmonths after the inception of the reinsurance treaty
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7. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT

i. Investments held at fair value through income statewmmist of the following:

2019 2018
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations Total
SR SR SR SR SR
Money market funds 40,877,141 197,916,148 238,793,289 2,088,717 31,888,438 33,977,155
Investment funds - 71,081,131 71,081,131 - 26,323,351 26,323,351
Equities -- 17,460,885 17,460,885 -- 138,269,676 138,269,676
Fixed-rate
bonds/sukuk -- 50,512,516 50,512,516 51,726,932z 247,493,141 299,220,073
Floating-rate
bonds/sukuk -- 40,000,000 40,000,000 2,284,697 52,499,155 54,783,852
40,877,141 376,970,680 417,847,821 56,100,34¢ 496,473,761 552,574,107
ii.  The analysis of the composition of investments for shareholders’ operations is as follows:
2019
Quoted Unquoted Total
Shareholders’ operations SR SR SR
Money market funds 197,916,148 -- 197,916,148
Investment funds -- 71,081,131 71,081,131
Equities 17,460,885 -- 17,460,885
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk -- 50,512,516 50,512,516
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk -- 40,000,000 40,000,000
215,377,033 161,593647 376,970,680
2018
Quoted Unquoted Total
Shareholders’ operations SR SR SR
Money market funds 31,888,438 -- 31,888,438
Investment funds -- 26,323,351 26,323,351
Equities 138,269,676 - 138,269,676
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk 197,428,627 50,064,514 247,493,141
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk 12,499,155 40,000,000 52,499,155
380,085,896 116,387,865 496,473,761

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, all invesstmieder reinsurance operations which are measured at fai
value are quoted. The investments in bonds and sukuk $&INDlecember 2018: SR 54.01 million) are classified as Level
1 investments while the investment in money market famaigunting to 8 40.88 million (31 December 2018: SR 2.09

million) is classified as level 2 investments

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments under shareholders’ operations measured at fair value by

level of the fair value hierarchy:
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7 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR SR SR SR
Money market funds =" 197,916,148 -- 197,916,148
Investment funds -- -- 71,081,131 71,081,131
Equities 17,460,885 -- -- 17,460,885
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk -- -- 50,512,516 50,512,516
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk -- -- 40,000,000 40,000,000
17,460,885 197,916,148 161,593,647 376,970,680
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR SR SR SR
Money market funds - 31,888,438 - 31,888,438
Investment funds -- -- 26,323,351 26,323,351
Equities 138,269,676 -- - 138,269,676
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk 197,428,627 - 50,064,514 247,493,141
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk 12,499,155 -- 40,000,000 52,499,155
348,197,458 31,888,438 116,387,865 496,473,761

Fair values of investment funds based on thenet assets value (“NAV”) calculated on the basis of the fair value of the
underlying real estate as disclosed in the fund’s latest available financial statements. The discounted cash flow (“DCF”)
model has been used to value the debt securities, this model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated
from the debt security, discounted at the market yield of similar quoted instruments. The estimate is adjusted for the effect

of non-marketability of the debt securities. The following table shows a reconciliation from thgibaing balances to the
ending balances for the fair value measurement in leoktt8 fair value hierarchy.

Realized loss Unrealized

Opening Purchase Sale gain Closing
2019 116,387,865 46,081,132 (1,047,575) (340,290) 512,515 161,593,647
2018 140,064,514 - (23,676,649) - - 116,387,865

Sensitivity Analysis

For the fair value of level 3 investments, reasonabfsipte changes at the reporting date to one of thesengble
inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have theviglig effects.

2019 2018
Investments held at fair value through income statement 50,512,516 50,064,514
Impact on unrealized gain for the year ended:
If increased by 5% in market rate (134,430) (312,689)
If decreased by 5% in market rate 134,430 312,689

There were no transfers between level 1 and levelr 2/éiie measurements, and no transfers into or ouveff Befair
value measurements during the year ended 31 December 2018aamthged 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the investments under reinsuogecations include SR Nil (31 December 2018: SR 54.01
million) which are held through discretionary managed porolio

As at 31 December 201he investments under shareholders’ operations include SR Nil (31 December 2018: SR 318.5
million) which are held through discretionary managed porolio
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7 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Investments under reinsurance and shareholders’ operations include cash component of SR Nil and SR Nil respectively as
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2ER 0.77 million and SR 10.04 million) available with extd fund managers
within the agreed investment guidelines.

iii. The movement of investments held at fair value thrangbme statement is as follows:

2019 2018
Reinsurance Shareholders Reinsurance Shareholders
operations  ’ operations Total operations > operations Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Opening balanct 56,100,346 496,473,761 552,574,107 106,316,032 758,751,497 865,067,529
Additions 38,572,307 315,673,142 354,245,449 21,000,000 36,078,728 57,078,728
Disposals (54,204,897) (452,462,698) (506,667,595) (72,416,163) (301,294,002) (373,710,165)
Unrealized gain: 216,118 3,576,588 3,792,706 (367,808) 3,828,225 3,460,417
Realized gains 193,267 13,709,887 13,903,154 1,568,285 (890,687) 677,598

Closing balance 40,877,141 376,970,680 417,847,821 56,100,346 496,473,761 552,574,107

iv. The geographical split of investments held at fair vélmeugh income statement is as follows:

Domestic International Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Reinsurance operations
Money market funds 40,877,141 2,088,717 - -- 40,877,141 2,088,717
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk -- -- -- 51,726,932 -- 51,726,932
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk - -- -- 2,284,697 -- 2,284,697

40,877,141 2,088,717 -- 54,011,629 40,877,141 56,100,346

Domestic International Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Shareholders’ operations
Money market funds 197,916,148 31,888,438 -- -- 197,916,148 31,888,438
Investment funds 71,081,131 26,323,351 -- - 71,081,131 26,323,351
Equities 17,460,885 70,186,682 -- 68,082,994 17,460,885 138,269,67¢€
Fixed-rate bonds/sukuk 40,480,100 40,000,000 10,032,416 207,493,141 50,512,516 247,493,141
Floating-rate bonds/sukuk 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 12,499,155 40,000,000 52,499,155
366,938264 208,398,471 10,032,416 288,075,290 376,970,680 496,473,761
Total 407,815405 210,487,188 10,032,416 342,086,919 417,847,821 552,574,107
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7

V.

The analysis of investments by counter-party is bowe:

INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

2019 2018
SR SR
Reinsurance Shareholders Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations  operations Total
Fixed income counterparties
Saudi Government -- 40,480,100 40,480,100 11,353,243 90,572,083 101,925,326
Non-Saudi Government -- 10,032,416 10,032,416 31,342,945 124,291,840 155,634,785
Corporate and financial institution - 40,000,000 40,000,000 11,315,441 85,128,335 96,443,776
- 90,512,516 90,512,516 54,011,629 299,992,258 354,003,887
Others
Money Market Funds 40,877,141 197,916,148 238,793,289 2,088,717 31,888,476 33,977,193
Investment Funds - 71,081,131 71,081,131 - 26,323,351 26,323,351
Equities -
17,460,885 17,460,885 -- 138,269,676 138,269,676
40,877,141 286,458,164 327,335,305 2,088,717 196,481,503 198,570,220
Total 40,877,141 376,970,680 417,847,821 56,100,346 496,473,761 552,574,107
8. CLAIMS
2019 2018
SR SR
Outstanding claims 737,229,272 662,467,372
Claims incurred but not reported 355,254,946 330,480,733
1,092,484,218 992,948,105
Less:
- Retroceded share of outstanding claims 282,718,771 198,432,518
- Retroceded share of claims incurred but not reported 34,812,075 59,937,179
317,530,846 258,369,697
Net outstanding claims reserves 774,953,372 734,578,408
9. PREPAID EXPENSES DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS
2019 2018
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations operations Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Refundable deposit 103,722 -- 103,722 103,222 -- 103,222
Recoverable Deposits (refer
note 31b) & 21e)) 119,359,875 71,752,470 191,112,345 119,359,875 30,810,000 150,169,875
Guarantee deposit (note 30b) 37,330,434 -- 37,330,434 47,250,000 -- 47,250,000
Advances to employees 1,168,996 -- 1,168,996 1,384,613 -- 1,384,613
Advance payments 293,024 -- 293,024 292,200 -- 292,200
Prepaid insurance 391,737 -- 391,737 344,141 228,471 572,612
Value added tax 12,915,098 - 12,915,098 8,835,167 - 8,835,167
Others 341,448 983,094 1,324,542 302,427 49,116 351,543
171,904,334 72,735,564 244,639,898 177,871,645 31,087,587 208,959,232
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10. UNEARNED PREMIUMS

2019
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 380,171,285 (33,080,894) 347,090,391
Premiums written during the year 792,847,561 (146,242284) 646,605277
Net premium earned (771,021,254) 128,486392 (642,534,862)
Change in net unearned premiums 21,826,307 (17,755,892) 4,070,415
Closing balance 401,997,592 (50,836,786) 351,160,806
2018
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 461,488,892 (117,679,188) 343,809,704
Premiums written during the year 721,604,828 (104,708,727) 616,896,101
Net premiums earned (802,922,435) 189,307,020 (613,615,415)
Change in net unearned premiums (81,317,607) 84,598,293 3,280,686
Closing balance 380,171,285 (33,080,894) 347,090,391
11. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS
2019 2018
SR SR
Opening balance 99,895,591 100,345,144
Incurred during the year 179,164044 172,022,204
Charged for the year (172,780534) (172,471,757)
Closing balance 106,279,101 99,895,591
12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPME NT, NET
Reinsurance operations:
Computers Furniture
and and Motor Leasehold Work-in- Right of Use Total
Equipment Fixtures Vehicles Improvements Progress*
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 2019 13,401,508 366,669 723,661 380,334 536,786 -- 15,408,958
Additions during the year 1,692,847 -- -- 601,680 23,512 660,129 2,978,168
Transfers during the year -- -- -- - (261,814) -- (261,814)
As at 31 December 2019 15,094,355 366,669 723,661 982,014 298,484 660,129 18,125,312
Accumulated
depreciation:
As at 1 January 2019 12,027,862 329,002 693,519 145,727 - - 13,196,110
Charged for the year 751,581 26,658 20,738 37,990 -- 150,913 987,880
As at 31 December 2019 12,779,443 355,660 714,257 183,717 - 150,913 14,183,990
Net book value
As at 31 December 2019 2,314,912 11,009 9,404 798,297 298,484 509,216 3,941,322

* Work-in-progress represents certain advances for the IT infciste.
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12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPME NT, NET (CONTINUED)
Reinsurance operations:
Computers  Furniture Motor Leasehold Work-in -
and and . Total
. . Vehicles Improvements Progress*
Equipment  Fixtures SR SR SR SR
SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 2018 12,517,245 366,669 723,661 368,334 217,363 14,194,272
Additions during the year 884,263 -- -- 11,500 320,653 1,216,416
Transfers during the year -- -- -- -- (1,730) (1,730)
As at 31 December 2018 13,401,508 366,669 723,661 380,334 536,786 15,408,958
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2018 10,956,764 280,089 561,389 109,641 - 11,907,383
Charged for the year 1,071,098 48,913 132,130 36,086 - 1,288,227
As at 31 December 2018 12,027,862 329,002 693,519 145,727 - 13,196,110
Net book value
As at 31 December 2018 1,373,646 37,667 30,142 234,607 536,786 2,212,848
Shareholders’ operations:
Furniture and
Land Building Fixtures Total
SR SR SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 2019 18,329,96C 11,454,04C 4,706,907 34,490,907
Additions during the year -- -- -- --
As at 31 December 2019 18,329,96C 11,454,04C 4,706,907 34,490,907
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2019 -- 1,708,402 2,406,455 4,114,857
Charged for the year -- 318,168 423,676 741,844
As at 31 December 2019 -- 2,026,570 2,830,131 4,856,701
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2019 18,329,96C 9,427,470 1,876,776 29,634,20¢
Total net book value as aB1 December 201¢ 33,575,52¢
Shareholders’ operations:
Furniture ant
Land Building Fixtures Total
SR SR SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 2018 18,329,96C 11,454,04C 4,706,907 34,490,907
Additions during the year -- -- -- --
As at 31 December 2018 18,329,96C 11,454,04C 4,706,907 34,490,907
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2018 -- 1,361,310 1,880,017 3,241,327
Charged for the year -- 347,092 526,438 873,530
As at 31 December 2018 -- 1,708,402 2,406,455 4,114,857
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2018 18,329,96( 9,745,638 2,300,452 30,376,050
Total net book value as at 31 December 201 32,588,89¢
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13. TIME DEPOSITS

Time deposits are placed with banks which have credit ratings in line with Company’s investment policy. Such deposits
earn special commission at an average effective commisai®mf 3.14% per annum (31 December 2018: 2.33 % per
annum).

14. ACCRUED REINSURANCE PREMIUMS

The gross written premium8GWP’) of proportional treaty and facultative reinsurancetreats include estimates of
premiums due to the company but not yet reported by thenteThis portion of GWP is considered as pipeline premium
and accounted in the Statement of Financial PositioA&rued reinsurance premiums’ net of related acquisition costs.

These pipeline/accrued premiums are estimated at teptioc of the reinsurance contract based on cedents/brokers
forecasts and management’s evaluation of these forecasts. Management reviews and evaluates all premium estimates,
comparing actual premiums to expected ultimate premiunres quarterly basis and any adjustments to these estimates
are recorded in the financial statements as and when updétedation comes to light.

15. UNEARNED RETROCESSION COMMISSION

2019 2018

SR SR

Opening balance 6,410,240 7,542,299
Commission received on retroceded business during the year 20,161,830 15,335,999
Commission earned on retroceded business during the year (18,175,998) (16,468,058)
Closing balance 8,396,072 6,410,240

16. INVESTMENT IN AN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVEST EE

2019 2018

SR SR
Opening balance 97,293,81¢ 91,954,382
Share of profit of equity accounted investee 5,114,50¢ 2,303,238
Share in foreign currency translation adjustments (962,691 3,036,196
31 December 101,445,63: 97,293,816

The Company, on 6 October 2017, acquired 49.9% of the ordinargssbfaProbitas Holdings (Bermuda) Limited
(“PHBL”). The Company has accounted for this investment as an associatey(egeibunted investee). PHBL operates
in insurance and reinsurance businesses including Lloydeetria London, United Kingdom.

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets and totalitiegiof PHBL amount to SR 916 million and SR 743 million
respectively (2018: SR 766.7 million and SR 602.1 million respag}. The profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounts to SR 10million (2018 SR 45 million).

17. HELD- TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

This representinvestment in locally issued Sukuk amoutdiB&R 37.5 million (2018: Nil). The interest rate on the Sukuk

is 3.89% and it will be maturing in year 20d%e credit rating of the counter partyAi$ by Moody’s and A- by Standard
& Poors credit quality agencies.
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18. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The movement in provision for employee avfeservice benefits for the years ended 31 December $obaues:

201¢ 2018
SR SR
Balance at beginning of the year 6,593,975 5,729,277
Charge for the year 1,052,226 1,405,697
Interest cost 132,192 161,341
Amount recognized in income statement 1,184,418 1,567,038
Re-measurement loss recognized in other comprehensiveéco 2,058,517 --
Benefits paid during the year (1,008,205) (702,340)
Balance at the end of the year 8,828,705 6,593,975
Net defined benefit as at year-end is as follows:
2019 2018
SR SR
Present value of defined benefit obligation 8,828,70! 6,593,97!

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes as to one of the rel@stirial assumptions, holding other assumptions congt@dmount
of defined benefit obligations would have been:

2019 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Future salary growth (5% movement) 441,435 (441,435) 329,699 (329,699)

Risks associated with defined benefit plans

Salary increase risk:

The retirement benefit of the company is one whieecbenefit is linked with final salary. The risk assehen the actual
salary increases are higher than expectation and imjh&clisbility accordingly.

Principal actuarial assumptions

The discount rate used is 2.25% (2018: 3%) while the expectedfraalary increase used is 2.47% (2018: 2.47%)

19. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
2019 2018
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’

operations operations Total operations operations Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR

Consultancy fees 1,442,500 - 1,442,500 - 95,039 95,039
Employees’ bonus 4,326,846 - 4,326,846 2,372,314 810,639 3,182,953
Withholding tax payable 2,548,093 15,694 2,563,787 517,812 -- 517,812
Professional fees payable 1,158,003 1,327,323 2,485,326 1,081,055 2,096,133 3,177,188
Directors’ remunerations - 1,140,000 1,140,000 - 1,100,000 1,100,000
Meetings fees and expens -- 1,066,384 1,066,384 -- 885,008 885,008
Value added tax payable 3,217,525 -- 3,217,525 2,168,976 -- 2,168,976
Others 2,816,905 361,515 3,178,420 1,419,976 -- 1,419,976
15,509,872 3,910,916 19,420,788 7,560,133 4,986,819 12,546,952
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20. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE

The following table shows the estimates of cumulatiiired claims, including both claims notified and inadirbeit not reported for each successive underwriting yeaacat e
reporting date, together with cumulative payments to dte development aiinsurance liabilities provides a measure of thenfany’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of the
claims. The Company aims to maintain adequate reservesgect of itsensurance business in order to protect against advdrse tlaims experience and developments. As claims
develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes morairceatverse claims experiences will be eliminated wigshlts in the release of reserves from earlier undengyears. In
order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company wisifelamuch of this release to the future underwritingsygaserves when the development of claims is less maruatéhere

is much greater uncertainty attached to the ultimatecf@$aims.

Gross reinsurance contract outstandilagms provision for 2019:

2013 and
prior 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total

Underwriting year SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
At end of underwriting year 184,231,909 242,728,277 166,267,303 323,560,488 282,831,889 248,740,712
One year later 360,219,868 1,074,743,558 324,048,753 576,963,497 539,563,402 -
Two years later 350,425,942 1,095,518,847 352,196,791 607,942,35 -
Three years later 370,528,846 1,068,163,227 360,111,616 - -
Four years later 363,998,517 1,064,368,673 - - -
Five years later 365,260,904 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 365,260,904 1,064,368,673 360,111,616 607,942,353 539,563,402 248,740,712 3,185,987,66C
Cumulative payments to date (331,369,534) (1,014,461,172) (274,433,91. (319,407,624) (208,918,221 (5,724,068) (2,154,314,530)
Liability recognized for 2013 and prior 60,811,088 60,811,088
Total gross outstanding claims and claims
incurred but not reported provision per the
statement of financial position 60,811,088 33,891,370 49,907,501 85,677,705 288,534,729 330,645,181 243,016,644 1,092,484,218
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20. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE (CONTINUED)

Gross reinsurance contract outstanding claims povisir 2018:

2012 and
prior 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total

Underwriting year SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
At end of underwriting year 149,402,912 184,231,909 242,728,277 166,267,303 323,560,488 282,793,419
One year later 344,228,030 360,219,868 1,074,743,558 324,048,753 576,963,497 -
Two years later 290,112,923 350,425,942 1,095,518,847 352,196,791 -
Three years later 289,836,213 370,528,846 1,068,163,227 - -
Four years later 295,560,915 363,998,517 -- -- --
Five years later 295,920,333 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 295,920,333 363,998,517 1,068,163,227 352,196,791 576,963,497 282,793,419 2,940,035,784
Cumulative payments to date (254,075,137) (314,287,979) (998,642,132 (201,790,297) (184,870,874) (30,687,020) (1,984,353,439)
Liability recognized for 2012 and prior 37,265,760 37,265,760
Total gross outstanding claims and claims
incurred but not reported provision per the
statement of financial position 37,265,760 41,845,196 49,710,538 69,521,095 150,406,494 392,092,623 252,106,399 992,948,105
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20. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE (CONTINUED)

Net reinsurance contract outstanding claims provisio2@4.9:

2013 and
prior 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total

Underwriting year SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
At end of underwriting year 156,137,999 231,126,743 165,314,261 219,104,644 218,615,217 151,400,260
One year later 316,800,613 994,226,860 325,244,631 410,535,835 427,567,472 --
Two years later 311,680,480 1,008,411,285 341,080,047 455,321,351 -- --
Three years later 342,110,021 985,848,692 355,423,583 -- -- --
Four years later 339,134,581 987,174,580 - - - -
Five years later 341,005,938 - -- -- -- --
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 341,005,938 987,174,580 355,423,583 455,321,351 427,567,472 151,400,260 2,717,893,184
Cumulative payments to date (308,391,824) (945,204,111) (270,475,428) (280,468,456) (180,649,633) (3,257,882) (1,988,447,334)
Liability recognized for 2013 and prior 45,507,522 45,507,522
Total net outstanding claims and claims
incurred but not reported provision per the
statement of financial position 45,507,522 32,614,114 41,970,469 84,948,155 174,852,895 246,917,839 148,142,378 774,953,372

36



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

20. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE (CONTINUED)

Net reinsurance contract outstanding claims provisior264 8:

Underwriting year

At end of underwriting year
One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred

Cumulative payments to date
Liability recognized for 2012 and prior
Total net outstanding claims and claims

incurred but not reported provision per the
statement of financial position

2012 and
prior 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
149,622,902 156,137,999 231,126,743 165,314,261 219,104,644 218,702,0
332,081,892 316,800,613 994,226,860 325,244,631 410,535,835
282,327,873 311,680,480 1,008,411,285 341,080,047 -
282,125,164 342,110,021 985,848,692 - -
283,425,994 339,134,581 - - -
283,610,964 - - - -
283,610,964 339,134,581 985,848,692 341,080,047 410,535,835 218,702,036 2,578,912,155
(251,407,910) (292,256,203) (929,563,271) (197,962,185) (176,849,658) (26,783,629) (1,874,822,856)
30,489,109 30,489,109
30,489,109 32,203,054 46,878,378 56,285,421 143,117,862 233,686,177 191,918,407 734,578,408
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21. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

a) Zakat

Zakat charge for the year of SR 13,719,362 (2018: SR 12,863,666) isobaedfollowing:

Share Capital

Statutory reserve beginning of the year
Retained earningsbeginning of the year
Adjusted net Income for the year
Provisions

Deductions:

Statutory deposit

Others non-current assets
Zakat base

Zakat base for Saudi shareholders 99.10% (2018: 99.10%)
Zakat provision for the year

b) Income tax

Income tax for the year of SR 154,063 (2018: SR 39,136) is bastx following:

Net income for the year
Adjusted profit

Portion of net taxable income for non-Saudi shareholdl&@9 (2018: 0.90%)
Non-GCC share in losses carried forward up to 25% of thaiesfrom the portion
of taxable income

KSA operations' income tax base
Labuan Branch Income tax Base

Income tax provision for the year

¢) The movement of the provision for zakat and income tax is dsllows:

Opening balance
Income tax provision for the year

Zakat provision for the year
Paid during the year

Closing balance

38

(121,500,000)
(254,990,414)

2019 2018

SR SR
810,000,000 810,000,000
8,815,260 6,070,924
12,757,997 14,693,063
58,975,983 13,984,454
19,724,516 36,375,597
910,273,756 881,124,038

(121,500,000)
(241,104,198)

(28,375,616)

533,783,342 518,519,840
528,979,292 513,853,161
13,719,362 12,863,66€
2019 2018

SR SR
14,694,523 14,694,523
58,975,983 13,984,454
530,784 125,860
(132,696) (31,465)
398,088 94,395
2,481,480 6,693,446
154,063 39,136
2019 2018

SR SR
38,244,253 37,431,370
154,063 39,136
13,719,362 12,863,666

(12,089,919)

23,742,062

38,244,253
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21 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The Company has recorded zakat and tax provision bastwk @ircular No. 12746/16/1438H (18 January 2017) issued
by the General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax (GAZT), imolw Saudi public listed companies are to provide for tax
and zakat based on the shareholding percentages of GC@oardCC founding shareholders. The shareholding
percentages of GCC and non-GCC founding shareholders were 9100886 respectively as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

d) Status of assessment

The Company has filed its Tax / Zakat returns for tregyyended 31 December 2014 to 2018 with the General Authority
of Zakat and Income Tax (GAZT). The company receiveditted ssessments for the years ended 31 December 2008 to
2013 which shows additional zakat, tax and delay fines anmgumdi SR 32.55 million, principally on account of
disallowance of long-term investments and statutory depfiteim the zakat base. The assessments for the geded 31
December 2014 to 2018 are still outstanding.

The Company filed appeals against the GAZT’s assessment of additional zakat, tax and delay fines for the years 2008 to
2013. The Preliminary Appeal Committee (PAC) issued its Ruling on the appeals filed. The Ruling upheld the Company’s
appeal on certain items of the appeal and rejected the appedhe other items. The Company filed an
appeal against the PAC Ruling with the Higher Appeal Cdten{HAC). Later on, the Company approached Committee
for Settlement of Zakat and Tax disputes and reached agreenaent with the Committee for Settlement of ZakafTand
Disputes for the assessment years 2008 to 2013.

On 7" October 2019, the Company received a letter from GAZTuang them to pay final settlement of SR 16.05 million
from the existing additional zakat, tax and applicaiblesf for the years 2008 to 2013. The Company has settled tuntam
and the Company requested GAZT to release the guaragesit for the items appealed, against amounting to SR 29.39
million which is included in prepaid expenses, deposits dmer @ssets. The GAZT has released the guarantee deposit
subsequent to the year-end.

e) Impact of change in accounting for zakat and icome tax
This change in the accounting treatment for zakat andniedax as explained in note 3 has the following impadhen
line items of the statement of income, statements of financial position and changes in shareholder’s equity:

As at year ended 31 December 2018:

Before the As restated as at
restatement for the and for the year
year ended 31 Effect of | ended 31 Decembe
Financial Statement December 2018 restatement 2018
Impacted Account SR SR SR
Stat_ement of changes i ::1203/ r':éon ::)r( Za(lr(:ttaiﬁgz
Equity earnings) (12,902,802) 12,902,802 -
Statement of income Zakat and income ta
expenses -- (12,902,802) (12,902,802)
Statement of income | Earnings per share* 0.17 (0.16) 0.01

22. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized, issued and paid up share capital of th&vy is SR 810 million (201&R 810 million) divided into 81
million (2018 810 million) shares of SR 10 each.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Shareholding structure of the Company is as below. Threlsblaers of the Company are subject to zakat and in@me t

2019
Authorized and issued Paid up
Value per
No. of Shares share SR
Ahmed Hamad Algosaibi Brothers Co. 4,050,000 10 40,500,000
Others 76,950,000 10 769,500,000
81,000,000 10 810,000,000
2018
Authorized and issued Paid up
Value per
No. of Shares share SR
Ahmed Hamad Algosaibi Brothers Co. 4,050,000 10 40,500,000
Others 76,950,000 10 769,500,000
81,000,000 10 810,000,000

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain heal{hiyataatios in order to support its business objectivesaaximize
shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assehsirtfalts between reported and required capital levels on a
regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels adenm light of changes in market conditions and risk dberiatics

of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Companyfuliyg complied with the externally imposed capital requiretae
during the reported financial year.
23. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Article 70 (2g) of the Insurance Implgting Regulations of SAMA, a minimum of 20% of the annual
net income is required to be transferred to a statuésgrve until this reserve equals the paid up capital @ongpany. This
reserve is not available for distribution.

24. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 2018
Reinsurance Shareholders Reinsurance Shareholders’

operations  ’ operations Total operations operations Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR

Salaries and related benefii 30,598,986 3,157,188 33,756,174 29,354,748 3,016,611 32,371,359
Training 406,863 -- 406,863 869,259 5,688 874,947
Computer expenses 1,505,535 -- 1,505,535 780,248 -- 780,248
Travelling expenses 1,469,084 143,082 1,612,166 1,357,301 166,175 1,523,476
Depreciation * 1,729,724 - 1,729,724 2,161,757 - 2,161,757
Rent and premises expensi 1,049,520 -- 1,049,520 954,155 - 954,155
Advertising 1,159,901 22,136 1,182,037 1,018,362 1,493 1,019,855
Professional fees 1,972,751 2,608,160 4,580,911 2,496,626 2,371,671 4,868,297
Withholding tax 78,573 28,262 106,835 109,347 45,170 154,517
Consulting fees 2,129,018 595,423 2,724,441 304,164 - 304,164
Licensing Fees 37,978 541,768 579,746 93,658 525,943 619,601
Others 1,422,264 374,242 1,796,506 1,077,190 862,557 1,939,747

43,560,197 7,470,261 51,030,458 40,576,815 6,995,308 47,572,123

* Depreciation charge for the year for shareholtdepsrations assets is charged to reinsurance operations as a rent for using
the assets.
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25. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, MEETING FEE AND EXPENSES

2019 2018

SR SR

Board of directors’ remuneration 1,140,000 1,100,000
Meetings fees and expenses 1,116,420 1,080,757

2,256,420 2,180,757

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders and key emeagpersonnel of the Company. Key management personnel
are persons having authority and responsibility for planmlingcting and controlling the activities of the Comypadirectly

or indirectly and comprise top management executives incltigdenGhief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial @ific

of the Company. The Company transacts with its relatecepartithe ordinary course of business. The transactidth
related parties are undertaken at mutually agreed termich are approved by the management.

Details of transactions and balances with related ggaduring the year other than those which have beefosks
elsewhere in these financial statements are distlosiew:

Amount of transactions
Related party Nature of transactions for the year ended Balance as at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
SR SR SR SR
Board of Directors - Consulting fees 150,322 268,355 -- --
- Remunerations, meetings fees
and expenses 2,256,420 2,180,757 1,875,000 1,740,000
- Short-term benefits 10,072,375 9,231,752 2,854,771 2,249,464
Key management - Employees’ end of service
Personnel benefits 464,525 523,830 3,164,802 2,978,976
Companies
represented by - Gross written premiums 80,481,597 24,535,331 1,112,046 578,688
the Board - Claims incurred 1,692,143 1,794,500 2,829,748 3,131,773
members - Commissions 30,071,691 10,979,561 -- --
- Investments 88,246,912 -- 88,246,912 --

Balances with related parties are included in premiumvagdes, accrued expenses and other liabilities showthe
statement of financial position.

27. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 3hB®c2019 and 31 December 2018 have been calculated by
dividing net income for the year by the weighted averageber of ordinary shares issued and outstanding at thef éme
year.

The weighted average number of shares have beenpeattioely adjusted for all prior periods to reflect theraat of
reduction in share capital as follows:

No. of Shares 2019 2018
Issue ordinary shares opening balance as at 1 January 81,000,000 100,000,000
Effect of decrease in capital - (19,000,000)
Weighted average outstanding number of ordinary shasssated 81,000,000 81,000,000
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

28. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

The Company has deposited an amount of SR 121.5 million (3Inbece2018: SR 121.5 million) with a local bank,
which has been rated “A” by Standard & Poor’s Rating agency representing the statutory deposit of 15% of its paid-up
capital as required by the Implementing Regulations of the “Law On Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies”
issued by SAMA. This statutory deposit cannot be withdrawthout the consent of SAMA. The statutory deposit
generates special commission income which is accrueegohar basis and is shown as a separate line item asf ffaet
shareholders’ liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position as “Accrued commission income payable to SAMA”. The
accrued commission on the deposit as at December 201®Ri§5892,463 (31 December 2018: 15,549,401) and has also
been disclosed in assets as “Accrued income on statutory deposit™.

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified orettie bf internal reports about components of the Company th
are regularly reviewed by the chief decision maker in ordeallozate resources to the segments and to assess its
performance. Consgkent with the Company’s internal reporting process, business and geographical segments have been
approved by the Management Commititeeespect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities as stated below.

Segment results do not include realized and unrealized gaiimyestments held at fair value through income statement
other income, investment management expenses and all lggmsaministrative expenses.

Segment assets do not include cash and cash equivalegitssofance operations, time deposits, investmentsah éhit
value through income statement, prepaid expenses andagets, duéom shareholders’ operations and property and
equipment.

Segment liabilities do not include surplus distribution pésjaaccrued expenses and other liabilities angloyees’ end
of service benefs.

42



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

20.

29.1 Business segments

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Company revises periodically its estimated grogsenrpremiums and related retroceded premium upon recaptud! information from cedants. In some business sagithis results
in negative gross written premiums, positive retrocgatedniums and negative net written premiums for the yéanvthe revision took place.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
REVENUES

Gross written premiums
Retroceded premiums
Excess of loss expenses

Net written premiums
Changes in unearned premiums, net

Net earned premiums
Retrocession commissions

TOTAL REVENUES

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid
Retroceded share of claims paid

Net claims paid
Changes in outstanding claims, net
Changes in Incurred but not reported claims, |

Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs and profit commission
Other underwriting expenses

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND
EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING (LOSS) / INCOME

General

Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Health Speciality Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
79,118,64 204,274,17 89,856,78 59,853,70 56,172,93 49,872,04 22,764,71 96,761,20 134,173,34 792,847,56
(7,549,472 (17,708,89¢ (32,700,42Z -- (18,962,01¢ -- -- -- (50,922,817 (127,843,62¢
(3,639,42¢ (6,062,322 (1,176,522 247,21 (117,734 (814,910 -- -- (6,834,952 (18,398,65¢
67,929,74 180,502,95 55,979,83 60,100,91 37,093,18 49,057,13 22,764,71 96,761,20 76,415,57 646,605277
336,49! 2,170,217 (3,171,26C 9,568,46 9,087,78 (245,569 2,545,59 (13,344,39€¢ (11,017,694 (4,070,41F
68,266,23 182,673,12 52,808,57 69,669,38 46,180,96 48,811,57 25,310,30 83,416,80 65,397,88 642,534862
1,923,53 4,080,43. 1,114,82 -- 3,867,98. (6,841 -- -- 7,196,06 18,175,99
70,189,77 186,753,55 53,923,40 69,669,38 50,048,94 48,804,72 25,310,30 83,416,80 72,593,94 660,710860
(44,492,98£(131,502,72( (35,416,397 (40,031,691 (31,933,497 (39,791,40% (23,803,13( (42,741,441 (46,988,05¢ (436,701,32-
678,15 23,965,62 9,606,53 -- 6,983,81 -- -- -- 18,772,36 60,006,49
(43,814,832(107,537,09¢ (25,809,86C (40,031,691 (24,949,67¢ (39,791,40% (23,803,13( (42,741,441 (28,215,89) (376,694823)
2,466,50 12,666,38 3,096,44. (10,244,21: (188,745  (1,012,82: (532,840 -- 3,273,641 9,524,35
(9,904,56C (8,559,90% (3,427,08¢ (1,097,234 (4,205,687 1,252,46' (9,349,72€¢ (7,684,24¢ (6,923,344 (49,899,31¢
(51,252,884(103,430,61% (26,140,50: (51,373,137 (29,344,11C (39,551,757 (33,685,69¢ (50,425,68¢ (31,865,39% (417,069784)
(23,300,01¢ (55,914,841(17,474,292 (8,834,551 (15,828,792 (3,794,127 (1,345,36¢ (32,110,63¢ (14,177,90¢ (172,780,53¢
(332,500 (1,021,761 (404,982 (347,019 (305,126 (242,371 (126,551 (319,212 (516942) (3,616,464
(74,885,400 (160,367,217 (44,019,777 (60,554,707 (45,478,02¢ (43,588,25¢ (35,157,61% (82,855,53¢ (46,560,244 (593,466782)
(4,695,62€ 26,386,34 9,903,62 9,114,67 4,570,971 5,216,47. (9,847,30€ 561,27( 26,033,70 67,244,07

43



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29.

29.1

Business segments (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
REVENUES

Gross written premiums

Retroceded premiums

Excess of loss expenses

Net written premiums
Changes in unearned premiums, net

Net earned premiums
Retrocession commissions

TOTAL REVENUES

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid
Retroceded share of claims paid

Net claims paid
Changes in outstanding claims, net
Changes in Incurred but not reported claims, |

Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs and profit commission
Other underwriting expenses

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND
EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING INCOME/ (LOSS)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Health Speciality Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
75,851,90 207,424,61 46,665,49 94,277,004 69,532,37 45,562,83 33,341,12 67,248,58 81,700,84 721,604,382
(9,380,16¢ (22,020,00C (10,810,55¢ -- (12,654,20¢ 79,13: -- -- (18,210,69¢ (72,996,501
(6,020,41C (11,908,32: (553,863 -- (224,203 (1,295,85¢ -- -- (11,709,56¢ (31,712,22¢
60,451,32 173,496,29 35,301,08 94,277,04 56,653,96 44,346,10 33,341,12 67,248,58 51,780,57 616,896,10
7,854,84 2,706,49 (470,565 (9,358,26: 1,948,74. 3,740,47  (4,424,60% (8,115,91¢ 2,838,10  (3,280,68¢€
68,306,16 176,202,78 34,830,51 84,918,78 58,602,70 48,086,58 28,916,51 59,132,67 54,618,68 613,615,41
1,830,31 5,042,901 810,92! -- 3,339,74 (58,276 -- -- 5,502,45: 16,468,05
70,136,48 181,245,68 35,641,44 84,918,78 61,942,44 48,028,30 28,916,51 59,132,67 60,121,13 630,083,47
(42,043,292 (90,024,04%(22,167,56C (62,781,731 (36,958,67C (58,895,022 (16,938,05¢ -- (59,519,432 (389,327,81(
1,562,39 5,254,99 925,61 -- 7,674,36 715,00: -- -- 8,506,01. 24,638,38
(40,480,902 (84,769,044 (21,241,95C (62,781,731 (29,284,30: (58,180,021 (16,938,05¢ -- (51,013,41¢ (364,689,42¢
(12,136,50t (25,796,814 (3,190,38¢  (5,688,93C (3,700,65¢ 1,123,23 (3,502,964 -- (25,076,84: (77,969,86¢
10,265,98 6,116,90. 6,103,94 20,216,27 2,333,54 10,366,37 (6,731,22C (40,847,08C 30,780,21 38,604,93
(42,351,41¢(104,448,95¢ (18,328,392 (48,254,38t (30,651,41¢ (46,690,41<¢ (27,172,242 (40,847,08C (45,310,04< (404,054,35¢
(23,428,531 (57,540,81€(12,243,30¢ (25,372,94t (18,552,56¢ (2,576,682 (719,037 (21,482,014 (10,555,854 (172,471,75i
(137,228 (549,929 (132,980 (332,198 (184,775 (129,081 (113,521 (93,637 (324,264  (1,997,61:
(65,917,17¢(162,539,701(30,704,681 (73,959,52¢ (49,388,762 (49,396,177 (28,004,80( (62,422,731 (56,190,167 (578,523,72¢
4,219,30 18,705,98 4,936,755 10,959,25 12,553,68 (1,367,86¢ 911,71 (3,290,061 3,930,96! 51,559,74
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.1 Business segments (continued)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Health  Speciality Others Unallocated Shareholders Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash -- -- - - - - - -- -- 6,061,32. 7,107,73  13,169,05
Time deposits - - - - - - -- - -- 138,195,36 239,835,81 378,031,17
Accrued special commission incol
from time deposits - - -- -- - - -- - --  1,72803C 6,246,37.  7,974,40.
Premium receivables, net 41,176,44 93,225,72 16,348,01 25,012,60 19,080,88 9,079,60 6,077,56 (308,692  74,556,62 (50,856414) -- 233,392376
Investments held at fair value
through income statement -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 40,877,14 376,970,68 417,847,82
Held-to-maturity investments -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 37,500,00 37,500,00
Accruedreinsurance premiums 45,237,42 92,142,82 31,036,42 28,103,98 31,708,39  38,383,49 16,671,46 133,976,73  49,810,12 -- -- 467,070,86
Retroceded share of unearned
premiums 7,061,90 5,456,33'  6,597,14 - 9,593,65! - -- -- 22,127,75 -- -- 50,836,78
Deferred excess of loss premiums ~ 3,015,89° 3,794,14 403,28( -- 99,74¢ -- -- -- 4,430,49 -- --  11,743,56
Retroceded share of outstanding
claims 6,785,24! 46,220,22 116,859,30 (995,031 3,5642,13 1,626,26 -- -- 108,680,63 -- -- 282,718,77
Retroceded share of claims incurr
but not reported 3,755,28 4,727,57  3,431,63 32,90: 8,726,49 -- -- -- 14,138,18 -- --  34,812,07
Deferred policy acquisition costs 20,867,56 27,478,91 6,844,090  3,257,35 7,274,191 1,313,27 129,39:  31,879,34 7,234,97 -- -- 106,279,10
Prepaid expenses, deposits and ¢
assets - - - - - - - - -- 171,904,33 72,735,56 244,639,89
Property and equipment, net -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 3,941322 29,634,20 33,575528
Accrued special commission incol --
from bonds and sukuk - - - - - - - - - 2,793,15  2,793,15.
Investment in an equity accountec --
investee - - - - - - - - - 101,445,63 101,445,63
Statutory deposit -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 121,500,00 121,500,00
Accrued income on statutory depc -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 17,992,46 17,992,46
TOTAL ASSETS 127,899,76£273,045,74 181,519,89C 55,411,814 80,025,493 50,402,634 22,878,425 165,547,389 280,978,795 311,851099 1,013,761,624 2,563,32%75
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.1 Business segments (continued)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor  Accident Protection Health Speciality  Others Unallocated Shareholders Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 2019
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable (4,835,815 7,007,54. (16,377,91% 5,093,59 (1,891,04% (1,585,37¢ 1,147,29 -- (20,746,114 72,116,48 - 39,928,64
Retrocession balances
payable - - - - - - - -- -- 46,173,23¢ - 46]173,23¢
Accrued retroceded
premiums 1,176,66: 2,625,151 787,21! -- 6,995,29 73,54 - -- 10,083,93i - - 21,741,81
Unearned premiums 71,388,60 97,227,44 28,929,67 18,293,46. 27,725,12 21,263,47 8,091,26 81,440,01 47,638,53 - -- 401,997,59
Outstanding claims 101,508,87 216,947,13 144,953,93 52,744,82 27,148,36 26,341,46 7,426,62 -- 160,158,@¢ - - 737,229272
Claims incurred but not
reported 33,946,95 49,242,74 15,544,44 49,680,20. 32,306,22 25,366,14 25,454,10 88,661,52 35,052611 - --  355,254946
Unearned retrocession
commission 1,283,59 1,972,89 91,99¢ -- 1,966,47 - - - 3,081,10 - - 8,396,07;
Accrued expenses and oth
liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - 15,509,87 3,910,911 19,420,78
Employees’ end of service
benefits - - - - - - - -- -- 8,828,70! - 8,828,70!
Provision for zakat and tax - - -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 23,742,06 23,742,06
Accrued commission incorr
payable to SAMA -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 17,992,46 17,992,46
TOTAL LIABILITIES 204,468,89 375,022,91 173,929,35 125,812,09 94,250,43 71,459,24 42,119,27 170,101,53 235,268121 142,628,29 45,645,447 1,680,70559¢€
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATIO N (CONTINUED)

29.1 Business segments (continued)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Health  Speciality Others Unallocated Shareholders Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash -- -- - - - - - - - 22,343,71 9,542,391 31,886,10
Time deposits - - - - - - -- - --  73,896,43 196,235,24 270,131,67
Accrued special commission incol
from time deposits -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - 408,36" 1,671,25  2,079,62
Premium receivables, net 33,063,18 78,621,61 26,912,59 18,256,58 16,991,02 8,314,27. 5,657,84. -- 39,134,88 (26,928,48¢ -- 200,023,51
Investments held at fair value
through income statement -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 56,100,34 496,473,76 552,574,10
Accruedreinsurance premiums 45,037,70 95,556,38 24,345,10 24,596,62 28,688,72  36,594,29 19,382,54 109,680,06 25,896,68 -- -- 409,778,13
Retroceded share of unearned
premiums 8,010,93' 7,175,83.  2,619,07: - 6,220,52! - -- -- 9,054,52 -- -- 33,080,89
Deferred excess of loss premiums ~ 2,837,66: 3,638,81 403,27t -- 98,78! -- -- -- 4,453,07 -- --  11,431,60
Retroceded share of outstanding
claims 8,807,05: 48,821,29 26,882,34 (993,866 3,321,55: 114,79t -- -- 111,479,33 -- -- 198,432,51
Retroceded share of claims incurr
but not reported 8,097,13. 5,620,75¢  1,605,73 44% 5,721,60 651 -- -- 38,890,86 -- -- 59,937,17
Deferred policy acquisition costs 21,099,77 26,959,96 6,258,25  4,527,00 8,610,36 1,220,72: 300,93t  27,153,98 3,764,58 -- --99,895,59
Prepaid expenses, deposits and ¢
assets - - - - - - - - -- 177,871,64 31,087,58 208,959,23
Property and equipment, net -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 2,212 ,84: 30,376,05 32,588,89
Accrued special commission incol --
from bonds and sukuk - - - - - - - - - 2,663,89. 2,663,89
Investment in an equity accountec -
investee - - - - - - - - - 97,293,81 97,293,81
Statutory deposit -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 121,500,00 121,500,00
Accrued income on statutory depc -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 15,549,40 15,549,40
TOTAL ASSETS 126,953,45€266,394,65 89,026,372 46,386,794 69,652,584 46,244,745 25,341,322 136,834,043 232,673,955 305,904,864 1,002,393,4002,347,806,19
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.1 Business segments (continued)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor  Accident Protection Health Speciality ~ Others Unallocated Shareholders Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR

As at 31 December 2018
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 243,79: 8,841,26: 391,42( 490,53( 1,008,13 1,624,31 -- - 4,138,66: 3,189,51; - 19,927,63
Retrocession balances
payable -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - 22,898,55 -- 22,898,55
Accrued retroceded
premiums 2,021,81! 4,615,122, 28,97¢ -- 2,945,79 -- -- - 6,228,00 - - 15,839,71
Unearned premiums 72,778,66 101,381,18 21,780,34 27,861,922 33,086,08 21,017,90 10,636,85 68,080,71 23,547,61 - -- 380,171,28
Outstanding claims 105,894,07 232,426,68 58,047,78 42,461,04 26,739,04 23,774,58 6,893,77 -- 166,230,38 - --  662,467,37
Claims incurred but not
reported 28,403,84 41,575,06 10,291,45 48,550,51 25,095,65 26,620,21 16,104,37 80,977,27 52,862,334 - -- 330,480,73
Unearned retrocession
commission 3,004,69: (304,033 147,59! -- 1,543,711 -- -- - 2,018,26 - -- 6,410,241
Accrued expenses and othu
liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - 7,560,11. 4,986,83! 12,546,95
Employees’ end of service

benefits -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - 6,593,97! - 6,593,97!
Provision for zakat and

income tax - - -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 38,244,25 38,244,25
Accrued commission incorr
payable to SAMA -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 15,549,40 15,549,40
TOTAL LIABILITIES 212,346,88 388,535,28 90,687,58 119,364,01 90,418,42 73,037,01 33,635,00 149,057,98 255,025,27 40,242,16 58,780,49 1,511,130,12
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Compahny

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.2 Geographical segments

Other Middle
Kingdom of Eastern Other
Saudi Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Reinsurance operations’
results
REVENUES
Gross written premiums 322,049,827 91,840,094 48,339,005 230,148,735 100,469,900 792,847,561
Retroceded premiums (108,450,359) (448,149) (6,205) (18,938,912) - (127,843,625)
Excess of loss expenses (7,988,262) (4,586,370) (1,212,537) (4,484,972) (126518) (18,398,659)
Net written premiums 205,611,206 86,805,575 47,120,263 206,724,851 100,343382 646,605277
Changes in unearned (2,361,747) 6,123,956 (3,681,182) 8,927,677 (13,079,119) (4,070,415)
premiums, net
Net earned premiums 203,249,459 92,929,531 43,439,081 215,652,528 87,264,263 642,534862
Retrocession commissions 14,630,123 88,581 3,998 3,453,296 -- 18,175,998
TOTAL REVENUES 217,879,582 93,018,112 43,443,079 219,105824 87,264,263 660,710360
UNDERWRITING COSTS
AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid (173,450,296) (66,437,660) (20,095,037) (133,923,519) (42,794,810) (436,701,322)
Re_tc;oceded share of claims 52,435,137 88,486 29,529 7,453,347 -- 60,006,499
pai
Net claims paid (121,015,159) (66,349,174) (20,065,50¢ (126,470172) (42,794,810) (376,694823)
Clhanges in outstanding 10,729,761 2,782,790 (832,965) (1,187,145) (1,968,084) 9,524,357
claims, net

Changes in Incurred but not (12,462,854) (13,075,139) (5,186,038) (10,539,367) (8,635,920) (49,899,318)
reported claims, net
Net claims incurred (122,748,252) (76,641,523) (26,084,511)(138,196684) (53,398,814)(417,069784)

Policy acquisition costs and ~ (49,443,010) (27,287,641) (11,578,637) (51,893,944) (32,577,302)(172,780,534)
profit commissions

Other underwriting expenses (1,444,589) (465,290) (214,489) (1,153,102) (338994) (3,616,464)
TOTAL UNDERWRITING (173,635,851) (104,394,454) (37,877,637) (191,243730) (86,315,10) (593,466782)
COSTS AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING 44243731 (11,376,342) 5,565,442 27,862,094 949,153 67,244,078
INCOME / (LOSS)
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Compahny

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.2 Geographical segments (continued)

Other Middle
Kingdom of Eastern Other
Saudi Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Reinsurance operations’
results
REVENUES
Gross written premiums 288,453,053 100,629,833 35,100,939 224,526,281 72,894,722 721,604,828
Retroceded premiums (61,024,706) (34,515) (31,977)  (11,905,303) - (72,996,501)
Excess of loss expenses (11,091,879) (7,544,926) (1,323,152)  (11,018,237) (734,032)  (31,712,226)
Net written premiums 216,336,468 93,050,392 33,745,810 201,602,741 72,160,690 616,896,101
Changes in unearned
premiums, net 2,956,764 8,865,861  (2,265,190) (4,736,880) (8,101,241) (3,280,686)
Net earned premiums 219,293,232 101,916,253 31,480,620 196,865,861 64,059,449 613,615,415
Retrocession commissions 13,490,955 (1,448) 9,326 2,969,225 -- 16,468,058
TOTAL REVENUES 232,784,187 101,914,805 31,489,946 199,835,086 64,059,449 630,083,473

UNDERWRITING COSTS
AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid
Retroceded share of claims
paid

Net claims paid

Changes in outstanding claim
net

Changes in Incurred but not
reported claims, net

Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs and
profit commissions

Other underwriting expenses
TOTAL UNDERWRITING
COSTS AND EXPENSES
NET UNDERWRITING
INCOME / (LOSS)

(156,879,113)

(66,100,268)

(22,513,125)

(116,118,526)

(27,716,778)

(389,327,810)

6,636,002 491,407 4,890 17,506,083 - 24,638,382
(150,243,111)  (65,608,861) (22,508,235) (98,612,443) (27,716,778) (364,689,428)
(10,606,073)  (28,887,431)  (2,909,213) (34,169,130)  (1,398,019) (77,969,866)

43,248,123 10,305,810 2,204,747  (2,499,462) (14,654,279) 38,604,939
(117,601,061)  (84,190,482) (23,212,701) (135,281,035) (43,769,076) (404,054,355)

(63,020,310)  (28,697,157)  (8,622,910)  (49,980,611) (22,150,769) (172,471,757)

(853,719) (278,003) (111,382) (633,977) (120,532)  (1,997,613)
(181,475,090) (113,165,642) (31,946,993) (185,895,623) (66,040,377) (578,523,725)
51,309,097  (11,250,837) (457,047) 13,939,463  (1,980,928) 51,559,748
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20.

29.2 Geographical segments (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other
Middle
Kingdom of  Eastern Other Unallocated Total
Saudi Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories SR Shareholders SR
SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 5,300,551 - - 760,772 - - 7,107,736 13,169,05
Time deposits 78,881,12¢ - -- 59,314,238 - -- 239,835,817 378,031,17
Accrued special commission 863,471 _ _ _ _
income from time deposits 864,559 6,246,374 7,974,40.
Premium receivables, net 112,557,45¢ 45,533,263 23,783,305 53,855,741 (3,313,544, 976,153 - 233,392376
Investments held at fair value
through income statement - -- -- -- - 40,877,14 376,970,680 417,847,82
Held-To-Maturity investment -- - -- -- -- -- 37,500,000 37,500,00
Accruedreinsurance premium 136,607,25¢ 52,954,230 28,976,678 113,640,819 134,891,88¢ - - 467,070,86
Retroceded share ofuneame 4 115 54c 126,581 1,298 9,593,658 - - - 50,836,78
premiums
Deferred excess of loss 10,684,22¢ 1,059,334 - - - - - 11,74356
premiums
Retroceded share of 244,360,997 20,333,649 1,582,715 16,441,410 - - -~ 282,718,77
outstanding claims
Retroceded share of laims 53 51 g9: 916,722 204,631 9,842,863 46,766 - ~  34,812,07
incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition 30,013,241 13,651,794 5,381,604 25,344,262 31,888,200 - ~  106,279,10
Prepaid expenses, deposits ¢ 15 g5 63 - - 155394 - 156,690,30¢ 72,735564  244,639,89
other assets
Property and equipment, net 2,472186 -- -- 1,469,136 -- -- 29,634,206 33,575528
Accrued special commission _ _ _ _ _ _ 2793154 279315.
income from bonds and suku
Investment in an equity - - - - - - 101,445,631 101,445,63
accounted investee
Statutory deposit -- - -- -- -- -- 121,500,000 121,500,00
ﬁgggi‘ftd Income on statutory - - - - - ~ 17,992,463  17,992,46
TOTAL ASSETS 701,715,485 134,575,573 59,930,231 291282,852 163,513,30¢ 198543,60: 1,013,761625 2,563,32%75
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 12,420,44¢ 11,542,237 2,519,498 8,790,765 2,087,962z 2,567,73 - 39,928,64
Retrocession balances payal -- - -- -- -~ 46,173,23 -- 46,173,23
Accrued retroceded premium 533,382 (1,124,041) (311,533) 7,243,582 -- 15,400,42 -- 21,741,81
Unearned premiums 157,880,14f 46,341,278 18,504,245 97,806,899 81,465,02¢ -- -- 401,997,59
Outstanding claims 402,401,571 136,453,774 22,019,223 173,189,167 3,165537 - - 737,229272
g;g:‘feéncu"ed butnot 151 578,16 44,964,520 18,261,640 80,004,135 90,446478 - - 355254946
Unearned retrocession 6,404,367 24,928 302 1,966,475 - - - 8,396,07;
commission
Accrued expenses and other - - - - - 1550987 3910916  19,420,78
liabilities
Employees end OfserVI(:e 8’828'705 _— _— _— _— _— _— 8]828,70!
benefits
Provision for zakat and tax - - - - - - 23,742,062  23,742,06
Accrued commission income
bayable to SAMA - - - - . 17,992,463  17,992,46
TOTAL LIABILITIES 710,046,78C 238,202,70¢ 60,993,37F 369,001,02:177,165,00z 79,651,27C 45,645,441 1,680,70559¢
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29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.2 Geographical segments (continued)

Other Middle
Kingdom of  Eastern Other
Saudi Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories  Unallocated Shareholders Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 16,237,72¢ - - 6,105,987 - - 9,542,390 31,886,10
Time deposits 19,397,00( - - 54,499,431 - - 196,235,246 270,131,67
Accrued special commission 59 69 - - 239,752 - - 1671257  2,079,62
income from time deposits
Premium receivables, net  47,592,75¢ 35,285,959 12,729,390 39,081,228 -~ 65,334,17 - 200,023,51
Investments held at fair value _ _ _ _ ~ 5610034 496,473,761 552,574.10
through income statement
Accruedreinsurance premiurr 129,433,27¢ 50,023,519 16,330,009 103,366,647 110,624,68+ - -~ 409,778,13
Retroceded share of uneamc 7 347 75¢ 8,739 8,026 5,746,379 - - - 33,080,89
premiums
Deferred excess of loss 7,162,684 1,068,000 - 3,200,925 - - - 11,43160
premiums
Retroceded share of 167,245,42¢ 13,694,224 4,615,894 12,876,977 - - -~ 198,432,551
outstanding claims
Retroceded share of claims 47 558 681 3523570 513471 8,635652 55,805 - - 59,937,17
incurred but not reported
Eggred policy acquisition o6 401 087 15,853,687 4,177,417 26,206,480 27,256,92( - -~ 99,895,59
Prepaid expenses, deposits ¢ 11 146 0oy - - 115,763 166,609,87: - 31,087,587 208,959,23
other assets
Property and equipment, net 1,908,364 -- -- -- 304,484 -- 30,376,050 32,588,89
Accrued special commission _ _ _ _ _ _ 2.663,892 266389
income from bonds and suku
InveStmentln an eql'“ty _— _— _— _— _— _— 97’293’816 97’293’81
accounted investee
Statutory deposit -- - -- -- -- -- 121,500,000 121,500,00
ﬁgggi’ftd ncome on statutory - - - - - - 15,549,401  15,549,40
TOTAL ASSETS 501,219,37: 119,457,698 38,374,207 260,075,221 304,851,76¢ 121,434,52 1,002,393,400 2,347,806,19
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Retrocession balances payal
Accrued retroceded premium
Unearned premiums
Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not
reported

Unearned retrocession
commission

Accrued expenses and other
liabilities

Employees’ end of service
benefits

Provision for zakat and tax
Accrued commission income
payable to SAMA

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,281,697 1,865259 4,632,891 9,694,103 - 453,68t -~ 19,927,63
- - - - -~ 2289855 -~ 2289855

53,735 (1,098,698) (311533) 2,927,586 -~ 14,268,62 -~ 15839,71
142,114,411 54,204,990 13,867,561 101,613,323 68,371,00C - -~ 380,171,28
336,536,29. 133,051,389 21,361,851 168,733,151 2,784,687 - -~ 662,467,37
132,522,900 34,496,239 13,384,441 68,257,556 81,819,597 - -~ 330,480,73
3,184,95¢ 1,748 2,051 1,178,198 -~ 2,04328i - 6,410,241
- - - - - 756011 4986838  12,546,95
6,593,97¢ - - - - - - 6,593,97!
- - - - - -~ 38244253  38,24425

- - - - - 15,549,401  15,549,40
624,287,967 222,520,927 52,937,262 352,403,917 152,975,28¢ 47,224,227 58,780,492 1,511,130,12
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses the
existing organizational structure to meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the riskiteppetl a strategic plan approved by the Boafrd
Directors. The Company is exposed to insurance, retiocespecial commission rate, credit, liquidity and curremnsis.

Risk management structure
A cohesive organizational structure is establishedimithe Company in order to identify, assess, monitor and ¢ontro
risks.

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralized oversigthe Board of Directors providing direction atié necessary
approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieweatke€orporate goals.

Senior management
Senior Managemeti responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the Company’s
pre-defined risk appetite.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these riskaitigated by Management are as follows:
30.1 Reinsurance risk

The risk resulting from reinsurance business writtéhagisk that an insured event will occur including theartainty of

the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The ppalrisk the Company faces under such reinsurance conitsacts
that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed thénggamount ofeinsurance liabilities. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual bengfagd being greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims.

The variability of risks is improved by the diversifigat of the risks written and the build-up of a large padfalf
reinsurance contracts, (inward business) as a more ifliaensortfolio is less likely to be affected across Huard by
change in any subset of the portfolio. The variabdftyisks is also improved by a careful selection of irdiausiness, by
the underwriting guidelines as well as the use of retrocession protection. The Company’s underwriting strategy includes,
but is not limited to, the following:
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30.1 Reinsurance risk (continued)

. Diversification in the type of accepted risks, and withicheaf these categories to achieve sufficiently large
population of risks to reduce the variability of the expectedomué.
. Diversification of the underwriting risks in terms of tyged amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

In order to minimize its financial exposure arising frongéaclaims, the Company in the normal course of busieptar;s

into retrocession agreements with other parties. Suobcession agreements provide for higher underwriting capacit
and allow management to contain exposure with the risk éppdtthe Company. The retrocession is effected under
proportional treaties such as quota share and surplus andopmrtfpnal treaties such as excess of loss for risk and
catastrophe to ensure its net retention is aligrigdits risk tolerance.

Although the Company has retrocession agreements)at izlieved of its direct obligations to its ceding pamies and
thus a credit exposure exists with respect to its retriocesses, to the extent that any retrocessionairaeable to mee
its obligations assumed under such retrocession agreements

Geographical concentration of risk

The Company accepts reinsurance business from insurangenies in the Kingdom of Saudi Argliize Middle East,
Africa and Asia. The written premiums are distributed gedgcafly as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Amount
SR Percentage

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 322,049,827 41%
Asia 230,148,735 29%
Other Middle Eastern Countries 91,840,094 12%
Africa 48,339,005 6%
Others 100,469,900 13%

792,847,561 100%

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Amount
SR Percentage

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 288,453,053 40%
Asia 224,526,281 31%
Other Middle Eastern Countries 100,629,833 14%
Africa 35,100,939 5%
Others 72,894,722 10%

721,604,828 100%

The Company monitors concentration of risk by evaluatiodiiple risks covered in the same geographical locatiday or
same party. For flood or earthquake risk, a completeigitjassified as a single location. For fire and priypesk a
particular building and neighboring buildings, which could liecééd by a single claim incident, are considered asjes
location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risksvared in a single vessel voyage are considered as a singhehiiek
assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluatesotteentration of exposures to individual and cumulative
insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance poligduce such exposures to the levels acceptable to thga@pm

Key assumptions
The key assumptions underlying the liability estimateshe Company’s estimated ultimate loss ratio. The ultimate loss
ratio was determined using actuarial methods.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30.1 Reinsurance risk (continued)

Sensitivities

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possibleements in key assumptions such as the ultimate losswtio
all other assumptions held constant showing the imgraogt liabilities and net income as follows:

31 December 2019

Impact on

Impact on net

Change in net liabilities income

assumptions SR SR
Ultimate loss ratio +10% 41,706,979 41,706,979
-10% (41,706,979) (41,706,979)

31 December 2018

Impact on Impact on net

Change in net liabilities income

assumptions SR SR
Ultimate loss ratio +10% 40,405,43€ 40,405,43¢
-10% (40,405,436) (40,405,436,

30.2 Retrocession risk

In order to minimize its financial exposure arising frongéaclaims, the Company in the normal course of busiepte;s
into retrocession agreements with other parties. Amaects/erable from retrocessionare are estimated aodnized
in a manner consistent with the amounts associatédtiét underlying accepted policy benefits and in accordaiibe
the terms of the respective retrocession treatidsaae presented in the statement of financial posisoreiasurance
assets

To minimize its exposure to significant losses fromaessionaire insolvencies, the Company evaluatedrtaecfal
condition of its retrocessionaires and monitors eatrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic negio
activities or economic characteristics of the retraoessre.

Retrocessionaires are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and
Risk and Underwriting Committee. The criteria may bersanzed as follows:

a. Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating dgerfe.g. Standard & Poors) that is not lower than
BBB (S&P) or equivalent.

b. Reputation of particular retrocessionaire companies.

c. Existing or past business experience with the retramnesise.

Furthermore, the financial strength, managerial and tezheixpertise as well as historical performance, wregrev
applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company andh@dtagainst a list of requirements peeby the Company’s
Board of Directors and Risk and Underwriting Committee bedppoving them as retrocessionaires.

Retrocession contracts do not relieve the Company it®obligations to ceding companies and as a result theo@uoy
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claimsmsared to the extent that the retrocessionaire failméet the
obligations under the retrocession agreements. The edit exposure in this connection is SR 233.9 million (due from
retrocessionaires) (2018: SR 219.6 million).

30.3 Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to locallatgy requirements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoringctivities but also impose certain restrictive psams such as
capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and irsaty on the part of the reinsurance companies aedable
them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

30.4 Claims management risk

Claims management risk may arise within the Company invifyet ®f inaccurate or incomplete case reserves amid<la
settlements, poor service quality or excessive claimdlingncosts. These risks may damage the Company and underm
its ability to win and retain business, or incur punitlaenages. These risks can occur at any stage of the tfaimle.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30.4 Claims management risk (continued)

The Company’s claims teams are focused on delivering quality, reliable and speed of service. Their aim is to adjust and
process claims in a fair, efficient and timely maniregccordance witlthe policy’s terms and conditions, the regulatory
environment, and the business’ broader interests. Prompt and accurate case reserves are set for all known claims liabilities,
including provisions for expenses, as soon as a rekahilmate can be made of the claims liability.

30.5 Reserving and ultimate reserves risk

Reserving and ultimate reserves risk occurs withinGbmpany where established insurance liabilities ssefficient
through inaccurate forecasting, or where there is inadeqliat®ance for expenses and reinsurance bad debts in
provisions. To manage reserving and ultimate reseiigks the Company actuarial team uses a range of recognised
techniques to project ultimate claims, monitor cladesyelopment patterns and stress-test ultimate insutaigkty
balances.

The objective of the Company’s reserving policy is to produce accurate and reliable agtisrthat are consistent over time
and across classes of business.

30.6 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to dischargepaligation related to a financial instrument and caus®ther
party to incur a financial loss. For all classes ddfficial assets held by the Company, the maximum expasaredit risk

to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed igtdtement of financial positioB7% of the Compgy’s receivables

is due from two ceding and three broker companies asZe@&Imber 2019 (31 December 203&%). The company does
not provide for premium receivable from local ceding panies. However, the following policies and proceduresrare i
place tomitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

. To minimize its exposure to significant losses fromaedssionaires insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its retrocessionaires countdipa. Accordingly, as a pre-requisite, the partiéh whom
retrocession is effected are required to have a minimoaepéable security rating level affirming their finaadci

strength.

. The Company, with respect to credit risk arising from diinancial assets, only deals with commercial bankik wit
strong financial position and credit ratings.

. The Company enters into inward insurance contracts ngitbgnized, creditworthy third parties. In addition,

receivables from ceding companies are monitored on asirapasis in order to reduce the Comygarxposure
to bad debts.

. The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect tdir companies through monitoring outstanding
receivables.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to creditaigke financial assets of the statements of firermsition.
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

SR SR
Reinsurance  Shareholders’ Reinsuranct  Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations

Bank balances and cash 6,021,32¢ 7,107,73¢ 22,303,71¢ 9,542,39(
Time Deposits 138,195,36. 239,835,81 73,896,43: 196,235,224l
Premium receivables, gross 235,474,03! - 203,156,46: -
Retroceded share of outstanding claims 282,718,77: - 198,432,51 -
Retroceded share of claims incurred but |
reported 34,812,07! - 59,937,17¢ -
Accrued special commission income fron
time deposits 1,728,03( 6,246,37: 408,367 1,671,25
Accrued reinsurance premium 467,070,86! - 409,778,13 -
Accrued special commission income fron
bonds and sukuk -- 2,793,15: - 2,663,89
Investments held at fair value through
income statement 40,877,14: 359,509,79! 56,100,34 358,204,08!
Other assets 15,214,031 -- 11,261,77¢ -

1,222,111,63 615,492,871 _ 1,035,274,92  568,316,87!
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
30.6 Credit risk (continued)

The used rating grades for investments are being adoptetmhgard & Poors

The credit quality for investments held at fair value tigfoincome statement is as follows:

Reinsurance operations Shareholders’ operations

Credit Rating Financial 2019 2018 2019 2018

Credit quality Agency Instruments SR SR SR SR

AAA/Aaa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- 772,366 -- 6,457,124
AA/Aa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- 17,251,313 -- 49,252,979
A S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- 36,049,615 86,561,232 147,779,380
BBB/Baa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- -- 20,000,000 54,314,576
BB/Ba & below S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- -- 10,032,416 20,438,131
Unrated Bonds / Sukuks -- -- 20,000,000 21,750,106
Unrated Money Market

Funds/
Investment

Funds/Equities 40,877,141 2,027,052 240,377,033 196,481,465
40,877,141 56,100,346 376,97068L 496,473,761

30.7 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encoundéficulty in raising funds to meet commitments assa&uatith
its financial liabilities.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basis amthigement ensures that sufficient liquid funds are alailab
to meet any commitments as they arise.

All time deposits held by the Company at the statemefimancial position date had original maturity periods I
five years.

Maturity profiles
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of tharfcial liabilities of the Company based on remaining ebgoke
undiscounted contractual obligations. Maturity profilestatermined based on estimated timing of net cash outfiows

the recognised insurance liabilities. Unearned premhewe been excluded from the analysis as they are ntwactual
obligations.

31 December 2019

Reinsurance operations Shareholders operations
Up to More than Upto More than
one yeal one yeal Total one yeal one yeat Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 39,928,64! -- 39,928,64! -- -- --
Retrocession balances payable 46,173,23! -- 46,173,23! -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums 21,741,81. -- 21,741,81. -- -- --
Outstanding claims 737,229,27 -~ 737,229,27, -- -- --
Claims incurred but not reportec  355,254,94 --  355,254,94 -- -- --

Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 9,744,33: -- 9,744,33: 3,895,22: -- 3,895,22:
1,210,072,24 -- 1,210,072,24 3,895,22. -- 3,895,22;
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30.7 Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturity profiles (continued)

31 December 2018

Reinsuance’ operations Shareholders’ operations
Up to More thar Upto More thar
oneyea oneyea Total one yea one yea Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 19,927,63! -- 19,927,63 -- -- --
Retrocession balances payable 22,898,55! -- 22,898,55! -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums 15,839,71 -- 15,839,71 -- -- --
Outstanding claims 662,467,37. --  662,467,37. -- -- --
Claims incurred but not reportec  330,480,73. -- 330,480,73. -- -- --
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 4,873,32¢ - 4,873,32¢ 4,986,83¢ - 4,986,83¢
1,056,487,34 -- 1,056,487,34 4,986,83¢ - 4,986,83¢

Liquidity profile

Maturity analysis on expected maturity bases
31 December 2019

Reinsurance’ operations Shareholders’ operations
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 6,061,32¢ -- 6,061,32: 7,107,73¢ -- 7,107,73¢
Time Deposits 138,195,36; -- 138,195,36; 239,835,81 -- 239,835,81
Premium receivableset 233,392,371 -- 233,392,371 -- -- -
Retroceded share of outstanding
claims 282,718,77 -- 282,718,77. -- --
Retroceded share of claims incuri
but not reported 34,812,07! -- 34,812,07! --
Accrued special commission
income from time deposits 1,728,03( - 1,728,03(  6,246,37: -- 6,246,37+

Accrued reinsurance premium 467,070,86! 467,070,86!

Accrued special commission

income from bonds and sukuk - -- - 2,663,89: -- 2,663,89:
Investments held at fair value
through income statement 40,877,14. -- 40,877,14. 376,970,68! -- 376,970,68!

Other assets 14,207,28: 14,207,28. -- -- --
751,992361 467,070,86' 1,219,063,22 632,824,49 632,824,49!
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30.7 Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity profile (continued)

Maturity analysis on expected maturity bases

31 December 2019

Reinsurance’ operations Shareholders’ operations
Non-
Current current Total Current Non-current Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 39,928,64! -- 39,928,64! -- -- --
Retrocession balances payable 46,173,23¢ -- 46,173,23¢ -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums -- 21,741,81. 21,741,81. -- -- --
Outstanding claims 737,229,27. -- 737,229,227, -- -- --
Claims incurred but not reportec 355,254,941 --  355,254,94 -- -- --

Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 9,744,33¢ -- 9,744,33:  3,910,91¢ -- 3,910,91¢
1,188,330,43 21,741,81. 1,210,072,24  3,910,91¢ -- 3,910,91¢
Gap (436,338075) 445,329,05. 8,990,97¢ 628,913,58. -- 628,913,58.
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30 RISK MANAGEMEN T (CONTINUED)

30.7 Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis on expected maturity bases (continued)

31 December 2018

Reinsurance’ operations

Shareholders’ operations

Curren Non-curren Total Current Non-curren Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 22,303,711 -- 22,303,711t 9,542,39( -- 9,542,39(
Time Deposits 73,896,43 -~ 73,896,43. 196,235,24 -- 196,235,24i
Premium receivables, gross 203,156,46. --  203,156,46. -- -- -
Retroceded share of outstanding
claims 198,432,51. -~ 198,432,51! - - -
Retroceded share of claims incur
but not reported 59,937,17! --  59,937,17¢ -- - -
Accrued special commission
income from time deposits 408,36 -- 408,367 1,671,25' -- 1,671,25
Accrued reinsurance premium -- 409,778,13° 409,778,13 -- -- -
Accrued special commission
income from bonds and sukuk -- -- - 2,663,89: -- 2,663,89:
Investments held at fair value
through income statement 56,100,34 --  56,100,34( 496,473,76. -- 496,473,76.
Other assets 11,261,771 - 11,261,77! -- -- --
625,496,791 409,778,13 1,035,274,92 706,586,54 -- 706,586,54(
31 December 2018
Reinsurance’ operations Shareholders’ operations
Curren Non-curren Total Curreni  Non-curren Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 19,927,63! -- 19,927,63! -- -- --
Retrocession balances payabl 22,898,55! -- 22,898,55! -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums -- 15,839,71° 15,839,71 -- -- --
Outstanding claims 662,467,37. -- 662,467,37. -- -- --
Claims incurred but not reporte ~ 330,480,73. -- 330,480,73. -- -- --
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 4,873,32t -- 4,873,32¢  4,986,83¢ - 4,986,83¢
1,040,647,62 15,839,71 1,056,487,34  4,986,83! - 4,986,83¢
Gap (415,150,83¢ 393,938,421 (21,212,419 701,599,70! -~ 701,599,70:
30.8  Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financiatrimment will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange.ratee
Company’s transactions are carried out in local and foreign currendiasagement believes that there is no significantdare
currency exposure since most of the Company’s transactions not denominated in Saudi Riyals were undertaken in foreign
currencies which are pegged to the Saudi Riyal.

60



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Compahy

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
30.8 Currency risk (continued)

The table below represents the Company’s assets and liabilities denominated in major currencies as follows:

31 December 2019

ASSETS

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits

Accrued special commission income from tin
deposits

Premium receivables, net

Investments held at fair value through incol
statement

Heldto-maturity investment
Accruedreinsurance premiums

Retroceded share of unearned premiums
Deferred excess of loss premiums
Retroceded share of outstanding claims
Retroceded share of claims incurred but
reported

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other asset
Property and equipment, net
Accrued special commission income from
bonds and sukuk

Investment in an equity accounted investee
Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

usb QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
2,053,455 -- 97,285 382,227 -- - 2,358,859 4,891,826
59,314,238 -- -- -- -- -- -- 59,314,238
862,939 -- -- -- -- -- -- 862,939
42,373,924 2,252,664 22,027,486 5,453,426 6,811,185 31,345,701 62,893,678 173,158,064
10,230,505 -- -- -- -- - 10,032,415 20,262,920
37,500,000 -- -- -- -- -- -- 37,500,000
30,562,022 1,961,858 18,183,425 5,918,441 2,541,804 26,368,864 243,225,477 328,761,891
11,480,514 166,255 6,818,988 598,885 1,070,616 1,688,028 56,386,980 78,210,266
207,552,345 -- -- -- -- -- -- 207,552,345
656,866 -- -- -- -- -- -- 656,866
101,445,631 -- -- -- -- -- -- 101,445,631
504,032,439 4,380,777 47,127,184 12,352,979 10,423,605 59,402,593 374,897,409 1,012,616,98¢€
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
30.8  Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2018

ASSETS

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits

Accrued special commission income from time
deposits

Premium receivables, net

Investments held at fair value through incol
statement

Accruedreinsurance premiums

Retroceded share of unearned premiums
Deferred excess of loss premiums

Retroceded share of outstanding claims
Retroceded share of claims incurred but
reported

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other assets
Property and equipment, net

Accrued special commission income from bond
and sukuk

Investment in an equity accounted investee
Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

uUsb QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
5,540,407 -- 31,471 43,666 -- - 6,570,461 12,186,005
56,499,431 -- -- -- -- -- -- 56,499,431
122,919 -- -- -- -- -- -- 122,919
48,304,826 5,432,830 13,175,842 2,270,600 7,500,406 23,470,133 42,087,887 142,242,524
332,022,403 -- -- -- -- - 10,064,518 342,086,921
31,489,520 3,500,421 14,449,245 6,331,556 2,840,923 38,113,918 204,577,279 301,302,862
12,849,702 962,404 5,007,965 1,033,372 1,234,588 3,087,505 50,126,809 74,302,345
166,609,875 -- -- -- -- -- -- 166,609,875
656,866 -- -- -- -- -- -- 656,866
97,293,816 -- -- -- -- -- -- 97,293,816
751,389,765 9,895,655 32,664,523 9,679,194 11,575,917 64,671,556 313,426,954 1,193,303,564
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30.8 Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2019 uSD QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 37,089,526 1,466,982 (239,208) 289,651 95,698 (472,575) 8,095,170 46,325,244
Retrocession balances payable -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Unearned premiums 62,686,527 545,024 21,916,100 1,969,325 3,856,951 12,227,162 171,502,183 274,703,272
Outstanding claims 294,076,626 19,703,863 25,637,237 2,831,139 22,728,783 74,722,846 105,298,463 544,998,957
Claims incurred but not reported 29,931,565 2,192,164 16,781,756 9,319,140 4,386,706 17,883,480 168,889,286 249,384,097
Unearned retrocession commission -- -- -- -- -- - - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,044,279 -- -- -- -- -- 986,643 2,012,922
Employees’ end of service benefits -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Provision for zakat and tax -- -- -- -- -- - - -
Accrued commission income payable to
SAMA - - - - - - - -

424,828523 23,908,033 64,095,885 14,409,255 31,068,138 104,360,913 454,753,745 1,117,424,492
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30.8 Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2018
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Retrocession balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Unearned premiums

Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Unearned retrocession commission
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits

Provision for zakat and tax

Accrued commission income payable to SAM

usD QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
6,086,684 1,676,918 288,328 136,426 5,863 173,654 8,957,678 17,325,551
50,275,716 3,842,957 16,230,912 3,405,943 4,571,205 23,375,539 150,487,966 252,190,238
207,933,871 24,734,440 24,478,482 1,453,605 22,369,025 85,571,105 97,535,994 464,076,522
47,173,920 3,828,358 11,102,370 4,637,614 4,766,397 17,982,300 144,850,376 234,341,335
1,044,279 - - - - - 968,722 2,013,001
312,514,470 34,082,673 52,100,092 9,633,588 31,712,490 127,102,598 402,800,736 969,946,647
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30. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
30.9 Special commission rate risk

The Company is exposed to special commission rate rigk bonds and sukuk investments. Special Commission rate
risk ariseon bonds and sukuk which are exposed to the fluctuations in speniahission rates.

The Company manages special commission rate risk bgtingen various long and short duration financial assets
along with cash and cash equivalents. The investmemtndbee monitors the duration of these assets omualare
basis. Duration of reinsurance operations and Shareholgenation’ investments in bonds and sukuk portfolios as at

31 December 2019 is around 4.76 years (31 December 2018: 5.39 yeaysdtifetical increase/decrease of 10 basis
points in yield curve will entail decrease/increaseébamd/sukuk portfolio values of reinsurance operations and
Shareholders operations’ investments by SR 0.62 million as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: SR 1.60 million).

a. Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value ofreaficial instrument will fluctuate caused by the facfother than
those arising from commission rate risk or currensk)rithat affectll financial instruments traded in the market.

Efficient management of market price risk is key to thvestment of company assets. Appropriate levels ostment
riskis determined by risk/return profile of the ass&tse Company has a diversified portfolio of investmentduding
investment in the listed equities securities. The Compzaryages the equity market price risk through diversificatio
and by placing limits on individual and total equity instramse A 5% change in the fair value of these investments,
with all other variables held constant, would impaet statement of income by increase / decrease of SR473,
(2018: SR 6,913,481).

30.10 Capital management risk

Capital requirements are set and regulated by the SaualeArislonetary Agency. These requirements are put in place
to ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectaresset by the Company to maintain healthy capitalsati
order to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by asgessirtfalls between reported and required capitaldere!

a regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levelsrade in light of changes in market conditions and risk
characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company mijagia
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares

The table below summarizes the minimum regulatory capiitddle Company and the total capital held:

2019 2018

SR SR
Total capital held 875,070939 832,647,873
Minimum regulatory capital 200,000,000 200,000,000

In the opinion of the management, the Company has fully compitbdhe externally imposed capital requirements
during the reported financial year.

b. Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments consist of financial assetsfarahcial liabilities. Fair value is the amount for igln an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled between krdydable willing parties in aarm’s length transaction.
Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumpttbat an enterprise is a going concern without any itterdr

need to liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its aplens or undertake a transaction on adverse terms. The
Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, investments and accrued income and its
financial liabilities consist of payables, accrued expsrend gross outstanding claims. The fair valuesnahfial
assets and liabilities are not materially differieain their carrying values at the statement of finahgosition.
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31 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Legal proceedings and regulations

The Company operates in the reinsurance industry andjecstilegal proceedings in the normal course of busines
While it is not practicable to forecast or determihe final results of all pending or threatened legal pidiogs,
management does not believe that such proceedings (inclitdjatidns) will have a material effect on its resuitsl
financial position.

b) Guarantee deposits

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has deposited and pldRi@2330,434 (31 December 2018: SR 47,250,000)
with local bank to obtain the standby letter of creolitdrds Fund At Lloyds (FAL) for its participation in a Lleyd
Syndicates and for 2017 and 2018 underwriting years. In addiienCompany has deposited SR 109,440,309 (31
December 2018: 119,359,875) with Lloyd’s London as FAL for its continued participation in a Lloyds Syndicates and

for 2018 and 2019 underwriting year. Upon issuance of standttey bf credit, the deposit with Lloyds will be
withdrawn.
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32 SUPPLEMENTARY INFOR

Statement of financial position

MATION

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Reinsurance Shareholders’

Reinsurance

Shareholders’

ASSETS

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits

Accrued special commission incorr
from time deposits

Premium receivables, net
Investments held at fair value throug
income statement

Heldto-maturity investments
Accruedreinsurance premiums
Retroceded share of unearn
premiums

Deferred excess of loss premiums
Retroceded share of outstanding clai
Retroceded share of claims incurred t
not reported

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Prepaid expenses, deposits and ot
assets

Property and equipment, net
Accrued special commission incorr
from bonds and sukuk

Investment in an equity accounte
investee

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit
Due from shareholdersperations*

operations operations Total operations operations Total
6,061,323 7,107,736 13,169,059 22,343,716 9,542,390 31,886,106

138,195,362 239,835,817 378,031,179 73,896,431 196,235,246 270,131,677
1,728,030 6,246,374 7,974,404 408,367 1,671,257 2,079,624

233,392,376 - 233,392,376 200,023,513 - 200,023,513
40,877,141 376,970,680 417,847,821 56,100,346 496,473,761 552,574,107

- 37,500,000 37,500,000 - -

467,070,866 - 467,070,866 409,778,137 - 409,778,137
50,836,786 50,836,786 33,080,894 33,080,894
11,743,563 - 11,743,563 11,431,609 - 11,431,609

282,718,771 - 282,718,771 198,432,518 - 198,432,518
34,812,075 34,812,075 59,937,179 59,937,179

106,279,101 -- 106,279,101 99,895,591 -- 99,895,591

171,904,334 72,735,564 244,639,898 177,871,645 31,087,587 208,959,232

3,941,322 29,634,206 33,575,528 2,212,848 30,376,050 32,588,898
- 2,793,154 2,793,154 - 2,663,892 2,663,892
101,445,631 101,445,631 97,293,816 97.293.816

- 121,500,000 121,500,000 - 121,500,000 121,500,000

- 17,992,463 17,992,463 - 15,549,401 15,549,401
90,986,728 90,986,728 110,965,035 110,965,035

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Retrocession balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Unearned premiums

Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Unearned retrocession commission
Accrued expenses and other liabilitie:
Employees’ end of service benefits
Accumulated surplus

Provision for zakat and tax

Accrued commission income payable
SAMA

Due to reinsurance operations*

1,640,547,778

1,013,761,625

2,654,309,403

1,456,377,829

1,002,393,400

2,458,771,229

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital
Statutory reserve
Other reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

39,928,645 - 39,928,645 19,927,639 - 19,927,639
46,173,239 - 46,173,239 22,898,559 - 22,898,559
21,741,812 - 21,741,812 15,839,717 - 15,839,717
401,997,592 - 401,997,592 380,171,285 ~ 380,171,285
737,229,272 - 737,229,272 662,467,372 ~ 662,467,372
355,254,946 - 355,254,946 330,480,733 ~ 330,480,733
8,396,072 - 8,396,072 6,410,240 - 6,410,240
15,509,872 3,910,916 19,420,788 7,560,114 4,986,838 12,546,952
8,828,705 - 8,828,705 6,593,975 - 6,593,975
7,546,140 - 7,546,140 4,028,195 - 4,028,195

- 23,742,062 23,742,062 - 38,244,253 38,244,253

B 17,992,463 17,992,463 B 15,549,401 15,549,401

- 90,986,728 90,986,728 ~ 110,965,035 110,965,035
1,642,606,295 136,632,169 1,779238,464 1,456,377,829 169,745,527 1,626,123,356
- 810,000,000 810,000,000 - 810,000,000 810,000,000

- 17,904,115 17,904,115 - 8,815,260 8,815,260
(2,058,517) 111,925 (1,946,592) - 1,074,616 1,074,616
- 49,113,416 49,113,416 - 12,757,997 12,757,997
(2,058,517) 877,129,456 875,070,939 — 832,647,873 832,647,873

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

1,640,547,778

1,013,761,625

2,654,309,403

1,456,377,829

1,002,393,400

2,458,771,229
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Statement of income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Restated)

Reinsurance  Shareholders’ Reinsurance  Sharcholders’

operations operations Total operations operations Total
REVENUES
Gross written premiums 792,847,561 -- 792,847,561 721,604,828 - 721,604,828
Retroceded premiums
- Local -- -- -- - - -
- Foreign (127,843,625) -- (127,843,625) (72,996,501) - (72,996,501)
Excess of loss expenses
- Local -- -- -- - - -
- Foreign (18,398,659) - (18,398,659) (31,712,226) - (31,712,226)
Net written premiums 646,605,277 -- 646,605,277 616,896,101 - 616,896,101
Changes in unearned premiums, net (4,070,415) -- (4,070,415)  (3,280,686) -- (3,280,686)
Net earned premiums 642,534,862 -- 642,534,862 613,615,415 - 613,615,415
Retrocession commissions 18,175,998 -- 18,175,998 16,468,058 -- 16,468,058
TOTAL REVENUES 660,710,860 -- 660,710,860 630,083,473 - 630,083,473
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid (436,701,322) -- (436,701,322) (389,327,810) - (389,327,810)
Retroceded share of claims paid 60,006,499 -- 60,006,499 24,638,382 -- 24,638,382
Net claims paid (376,694,823) -- (376,694,823) (364,689,428) - (364,689,428)
Changes in outstanding claims, net 9,524,357 -- 9,524,357 (77,969,866) - (77,969,866)
Changes in Incurred but not reported claims, 1 (49,899,318) -- (49,899,318) 38,604,939 -- 38,604,939
Net claims incurred (417,069,784) -- (417,069,784) (404,054,355) -~ (404,054,355)
Policy acquisition costs and profit commission(172,780,534) -- (172,780,534) (172,471,757) - (172,471,757)
Other underwriting expenses (3,616,464) -- (3,616,464) (1,997,613) - (1,997,613)
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND -- -
EXPENSES (593,466,782) (593,466,782) (578,523,725) (578,523,725)
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME 67,244,078 -- 67,244,078 51,559,748 -- 51,559,748
OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSES)/
INCOME
Special commission income from time deposit 8,889,740 9,435,660 18,325,400 4,139,943 1,684,512 5,824,455
Realized gains / (losses) on investments hel
fair value through income statement 193,267 13,709,887 13,903,154 1,568,285 (890,687) 677,598
Unrealized (losseg)gains on investments held .
fair value through income statement 216,118 3,576,588 3,792,706 (367,808) 3,828,225 3,460,417
Special commission income from bonds a
sukuk -- 4,156,498 4,156,498 - 2,873,709 2,873,709
Dividend income - 1,862,222 1,862,222 -- 3,419,095 3,419,095
Share of profibf equity accounted investee -- 5,114,506 5,114,506 -- 2,303,238 2,303,238
Investment management expenses (160,361) (1,514,756) (1,675,117) (403,940) (3,516,499)  (3,920,439)
Net investment income 9,138,764 36,340,605 45,479,369 4,936,480 9,701,593 14,638,073
Other income -- 999,616 999,616 -- 904,851 904,851
Reversal of doubtful debts 517,929 -- 517,929 1,574,768 -- 1,574,768
General and administrative expenses (43,560197) (7,470,261) (51,030458) (40,576,815) (6,995,308) (47,572,123)
Board of directors’ remunerations, meetings fees
and expenses - (2,256,£20) (2,256,420) - (2,180,757) (2,180,757)
Foreign exchange translation losses 1,838,879 42,651 1,881,530 (3,783,835) (48,009)  (3,831,844)
;&ta' income for the year before zakatand 35 179 453 27,656,191 62,835,644 13,710,346 1,382,370 15,002,716
Transfer of surplus to Shareholders’
operation (31,661,508) 31,661,508 - (12,339,311) 12,339,311 --
Net income for the year before zakat and tax 3,517,945 59,317,699 62,835,644 1,371,035 13,721,681 15,092,716
Zakat and tax charge for the year -- (13,873,425 (13,873,425) - (12,902,802) (12,902,802)
Net income for the year after zakat and tax
and shareholders’ appropriations 3,517,945 45,444,274 48,962,219 1,371,035 818,879 2,189,914
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32 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Restated)

Reinsurance
operations

Shareholders’
operations

Total

Reinsurance Shareholders’

operations

operations

Total

Net income for the year
after zakat and tax

Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be
reclassified to income
statement subsequently
Re-measurement o]
employee' end of servic
benefit obligations actuarie
loss

Items that may be classified to
income statement
subsequently

Share of foreign currenc
translation reserve an equit
accounted investee

3,517,945

(2,058,517)

45,444,274 48,962,219

(962,691)

(2,058,517)

(962,691)

1,371,035

818,879

3,036,196

2,189,914

3,036,196

Total comprehensive income
for the year

1,459,428

44,481,583 45,941,011

1,371,035

3,855,075

5,226,110

Reconciliation:
Less: Net income attributabl
to reinsurance  operation
transferred to surplus payable
Total comprehensive income
for the year
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32 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Reinsurance  Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations operations Total

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total income for the year befor
zakat and tax 3,517,945 59,317,699 62,835,644 1,371,035 13,721,681 15,092,716
Adjustments to reconcile net incon
for the year to net cash frot
operating activities:
Employees’ end of service benefits 1,184,418 -- 1,184,418 1,567,038 - 1,567,038
Depreciation of property ani
equipment 987,880 741,844 1,729,724 1,288,227 873,530 2,161,757
Realized (gains) / loss o
investments held at fair valu
through income statement (193,267)  (13,709,887) (13,903,154) (1,568,285) 890,687 (677,598)
Unrealized (gains) / loss on
investments held at fair valu
through income statement (216,118) (3,576,588) (3,792,706) 367,808 (3,828,225) (3,460,417)
Share of profit of an equit
accounted investee -- (5,114,506) (5,114,506) -- (2,303,238) (2,303,238)
Provision for doubtful receivable (517,929) -- (517,929) (1,574,768) -- (1,574,768)
Operating income before changes
operating assets and liabilities 4,762,929 37,658,562 42,421,491 1,451,055 9,354,435 10,805,490
Changes in operating assets ant
liabilities:
Premiums receivable, gross (32,850,934) -- (32,850,934) 160,422,319 -- 160,422,319
Accruedreinsurance premiums (57,292,729) -- (57,292,729) (37,690,443) - (37,690,443)
Retroceded share of unearn
premiums (17,755,892) -- (17,755,892) 84,598,294 -- 84,598,294
Unearned premiums 21,826,307 -- 21,826,307 (81,317,607) - (81,317,607)
Retroceded share of outstandi
claims (84,286,253) -- (84,286,253) (138,543,510) - (138,543,510)
Retroceded share of claims incurr
but not reported 25,125,104 -- 25,125,104 46,013,296 -- 46,013,296
Deferred acquisition costs (6,383,510) -- (6,383,510) 449,553 - 449,553
Deferred excess of loss premiums (311,954) -- (311,954) 2,868,169 -- 2,868,169
Prepaid expenses, deposits and ot
assets 5,967,311 (41,647,977) (35,680,666) (73,907,605) (30,859,116) (104,766,721)
Accounts payable 20,001,006 -- 20,001,006 3,279,446 -- 3,279,446
Retrocession balances payable 23,274,680 -- 23,274,680 (206,865,265) - (206,865,265)
Accrued retroceded premiums 5,902,095 -- 5,902,095 7,948,442 -- 7,948,442
Outstanding claims 74,761,900 -- 74,761,900 216,513,371 -- 216,513,371
Claims incurred but not reported 24,774,213 -- 24,774,213  (84,618,233) - (84,618,233)
Unearned commission income 1,985,832 -- 1,985,832 (1,132,059) -- (1,132,059)
Accrued expenses and oth
liabilities 7,949,758  (1,075,922) 6,873,836 1,817,463  (2,083,054) (265,591)

17,449,863 (5,065,337) 12,384,526  (98,713,314) (23,587,735) (122,301,049)
Zakat and income tax paid - (28,375,616) (28,375,616) - (12,089,919) (12,089,919)
Employees’ end of service benefits
paid (1,008,205) -- (1,008,205) (702,340) -- (702,340)
Net cash generated from / (usec
in) operating activities 16,441,658 (33,440,953) (16,999,295) (99,415,654) (35,677,654) (135,093,308)
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32 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’

operations

operations

Total

operations

operations

Total

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits

Accrued special commissio
income on time deposits
Accrued special commissio
income from bonds and sukuk
Additions in investments held t:
maturity
Purchase of
equipment, net
Additions in investments held ¢
fair value through income
statement

Proceeds from disposal ¢
investments held at fair valu
through income statement
Statutory deposit

property an

(92,461,486)

(1,319,663)

(2,716,354)

(38,572,307)

54,204,897

(30,522,571)
(4,575,117)
(129,262)

(37,500,000)

(315,673,142)

452,462,698

(122,984,057)
(5,894,780)
(129,262)
(37,500,000)

(2,716,354)

(354,245,449)

506,667,595

33,856,124

460,361

(1,214,686)

(21,000,000)

72,416,163

(196,235,246)
(1,668,007)

1,167,091

(36,078,728)

301,294,002
(21,500,000)

(162,379,122)

(1,207,646)

1,167,091

(1,214,686)

(57,078,728)

373,710,165
(21,500,000)

Net cash (used in) / generatec
from investing activities

(80,864,913)

64,062,606

(16,802,307)

84,517,962

46,979,112

131,497,074

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Due to / from reinsurance
shareholders’ operations*

19,978,307

(19,978,307)

33,496,647

(33,496,647)

(DECREASE) / INCREASE
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at 1
beginning of the year

(44,444,948)

72,093,146

10,643,346

9,542,390

(33,801,602)

81,635,536

18,598,955

53,494,191

(22,195,189)

31,737,579

(3,596,234)

85,231,770

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR

27,648,198

20,185,736

47,833,934

72,093,146

9,542,390

81,635,536

* These items are not included in the statement of fimhpokition and the statement of cash flows.

33

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The existence of novel coronavirus (Covid-19) was confirmesarly 2020 and has spread globally including the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (KSA), affecting health of individuals amaiging disruptions to businesses and economic activiighwh
may eventually impact the insurance claims reportethtbultimately settled by the Company. Moreover, theeBowent

of KSA through SAMA has announced several initiatives twiple necessary relief to the financial servicesosancluding
underlying consumers. The Company considers this outbrdmkaamon-adjusting post balance sheet event. As théaitua

is fluid and rapidly evolving, we do not consider it preadtie to provide a quantitative estimate of the pagemtipact of this
outbreak on the Company. The management and those chathegbwérnance will continue to monitor the impact of this
outbreak on the Company’s financial statements including ultimate cost of claims and will update stakeholders as per
regulatory requirements. Changes in circumstances may regpiesced disclosures or recognition of adjustments in the
interim financial statements of the Company in subsdqeniods during the financial year 2020.

34

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
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Certain figures for the prior year have been reclasdifiednform to the presentation made in the current eavever the
impact of such reclassifications was not materidh&overall presentation of the financial statetsien

35 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by thelBd®irectors on 28 Rajab 1441H corresponding to 23 March 2020.
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